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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

603-271-9544 1-800-852-3345 Ext 9544

Fax:603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

June 3, 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health to
exercise a renewal option with The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc. (Vendor# 177184),
401 Cypress Street, Manchester, NH 03103-3628, for the provision of Mobile Crisis Services and
Supports by increasing the price limitation by $1,345,249 from $4,002,549 to $5,347,798 and extend the
completion date from June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2020, effective upon Governor and Executive Council
approval. 100% General Funds.

This agreement was originally approved by Governor and Council on June 15, 2016 (Item #8)
and amended on June 20, 2018 (Item #33A)

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2020, with authority to adjust
amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the
Budget Office.

05-095-092-920010-59450000-102-502664-92204000 HEATLH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF

HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS; BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, DIV OF BEHAVIORAL
HEALTH, CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Object Title
Activity
Code

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2017 102-502664

Contracts for

Program
Services

92204000

$1,312,051 $0.00 $1,312,051

2018 102-502664

Contracts for

Program
Services

92204000

$1,345,249 $0.00 $1,345,249

;  • . :V '
. t

Subtotal $2,657,300 $0.00 $2,657,300
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05-095-092-922010-41170000 HEATLH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEAL TH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEAL TH SERVICES, CMH
PROGRAM SUPPORT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Object Title
Activity
Code

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2019 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92224117

$1,345,249 $0.00 $1,345,249

2020 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92224117

$0.00 $1,345,249 $1,345,249

Subtotal $1,345,249 $1,345,249 $2,690,498

.iRaiiAiUHj HilHilliiiii Total $4,002,549 $1,345,249 $5,347,798

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is for a one-year renewal of a current contract for Mobile Crisis
Response Team and beds for individuals eighteen (18) years or older who are experiencing a mental
health crisis, including those with a co-occurring substance use disorders in the New Hampshire
Community Mental Health Region VII, which includes Manchester, Auburn, Bedford, Candia, Goffstown,
Hooksett, Londonderry and New Boston. The Bureau of Mental Health Services is New Hampshire's
single state mental health authority. The Bureau of Health Services seeks to promote full community
inclusion for adults (18 years or older) who have severe mental illness, severe and persistent mental
illness or who are severely mentally disabled. The State places a high emphasis on supporting individuals
in their community with a broad range of supports and services that reduce the need for inpatient care.

The original agreement, included language in Exhibit C-1 that allows the Department to renew
the contract for up to two (2) years, subject to the continued availability of funding, satisfactory
performance of service, parties' written authorization and approval from the Governor and Executive
Council. The Department is in agreement with renewing services for the one (1) remaining year at this
time.

Each month, the contractor serves approximately 185 unique individuals through mobile crisis
outreach services, phone support, referrals, and crisis apartments, which results in approximately 358
hospital diversions each month.

As part of New Hampshire's implementation of the Community Mental Health Agreement
(Amanda D. Settlement), the Bureau of Mental Health Services has implemented the Mobile Crisis
Services and Supports contract for the provision of two (2), two-bedroom, community crisis apartments,
a mobile crisis team and timely accessible services and supports to individuals eighteen (18) years and
older experiencing a mental health crisis in NH Community Mental Health Region VII.

The contractor will continue to provide mobile crisis stabilization services 24 hours a day, 7 days
a week, a central phone triage system where trained clinicians complete an initial risk assessment and
appropriate referrals, and two (2), two-bedroom, mobile crisis apartments that provide an alternative to
hospitalization and/or institutionalization. The contractor will collaborate and coordinate with.^ law
enforcement where appropriate. Additionally, the contractor will have the ability to respond to requests
for crisis assessments and interventions within one (1) hour of receiving calls for mobilization of services.
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Once the contractor is involved with a case, services and supports can be provided for up to'seven (7)
days following the onset of the crisis to ensure individuals remain stable and, in the community.

The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester's effectiveness to deliver services will be
measured through annual programmatic audits, ongoing financial audits, and monitoring of the following
performance measures:

•  Response time between referral and community-based service delivery:

•  Ratio of services delivered in the community versus phone/office based services;

•  Number of services provided beyond the immediate crisis stabilization including referrals
made for ongoing support and care;

•  Prevalence of lethality assessments conducted to establish baseline need and formulate
crisis and discharge plans;

•  Service outcomes (i.e. if hospitalization was avoided).

Should Governor and Executive Council not approve this contract, the State of New Hampshire
would be in violation of the Community Mental Health Agreement in relation to the lawsuit of Amanda D.
vs. Governor Hassan, and individuals experiencing a mental health crisis could be placed in hospitals or
long-term facilities which could result in higher costs to the State.

Area Served: Community Mental Health Region VII (Manchester. Auburn, Bedford, Candia,
Goffstown, Hooksett, Londonderry and New Boston)

Source of Funds: 100% General Funds

Respectfully submitted.

Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The DejxirlnieiU of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opfX)rtunities for cituens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health, and Human Serylces
Mobile Crisis Services and Support, Manchester and Surrounding towns

State of New Hampshire
/Department of Health and Human Services

' Amendment #2 to the Mobile Crisis Services and Support, Manchester and Surrounding Towns

- This 2nd Amendment to the. Mobile: Crisis Services.and,Support, Manchester and Surrounding Towns
: contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #2") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, .. •
Department, of Health and Human' Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and
The .Mental Health Center of greater Manchester, Inc. (hereinafter referred to'as "the Coritra'ctor"), ,a,

-  nonprofit corporation with a place of busiriess at 40T"6ypress Street, Manchester, NH 03103-3628;' •"

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the/"Co.n'tfact") .approved by the Governor and Executive
. Cpuncil on June 15, 2016, (Item #8), as amended on June 20,\2018 (Item #33A), the Contractor agreed
to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended
and in consideration of certain sums'specified: a.nd/r

.  ."^ WHEREAS, the State and.the Contractor haVe.-a'gr^d to m^ changes to the scope of work,, payment- •'
./"■^^^sche'dules and terms and cdnditjohs.offe'co"nlract;-and— .'^''^ ■ ■ * - ; ■ . ;

-WHEREAS,--pursuant-to Fdrm-P-37T General-Pfovisioh^Paragraph-IO,' and Exhibit C-i r"Revision"'s--to'^''"T."'
..: "i^Geri^arPfovjsibns Paragraph '3 the'Statelfi'airTn^ity, the scope oT wr;irMdTh¥'paymehTschedule^

'  ./the:contract upon written' agreement of the parties and approval-from the Governor .arid Executive.
.. .,/Cquncil; and . - • ",

- WHEREAS, the,parties agree to extend the term of:the agreemerit. Increase the price limitation to"
support continued delivery of these services; and

^WHEREAS, all terms and'conditions of the'Cdhtr^t'and prior aniehdments not inconsi.ste"nt with this'
_.r. :z::;Arriendment #2 remain in full force and effect; an<^\-.' '^7.. •/ . - r
~:~NOW THEREf^ORE, in consideration of. the fp"fegojh'g.:and. the. mutual ..covenants. andJconditiOnS.

•' contained in the^Contract and set: forth herein, the parties-hereto agree to amend as follovys:
T. '.Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Cqriipletion Date, to read:.

June 3d,!2020. • - -\r. ■ ' ■ :
2. : Form P-37, General Provisions,.Block.l.8,-Price Liirritation, to read:. :

$5,347,798. " . : . -
■3r^Form P-37,' General Provisions, Block 1.9, L^ntracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

/Nathan VVhite, Director. ■ •

4. • Form P-37, General Provisions, Block T.10,-State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

-603-271-9631. ■ '

5;, Add Exhibit B-6, Amendment #2 Budget Sheet.

The Mental IHeatth Center of Greater Manchester Amendment#2
RFP #17-DHHS-DCBCS.BBH-01 - Page 1 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mobile Crisis Servjces and Support, Manchester and Surrounding Towns

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Govemof and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below',

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

•is
Date Katja'S. Fox:

Director:

The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester Inc.

I

Date , "Name: W^lljArnl^idcr

^iti®:^^^dch^/ Chicf ̂ xecuHy/cOflriocr

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of fVH -  ■ County of on fM^tU Z% i20l^ I before the
undersigned officer, personally appeaLed.tfi^^person Wfentified dir.ect!^ above,-or satisfactorily'pr^yenTp."
be the person whose name is signed^bovej^nd acknowledged that s/he executed this-documerit- in-the-
capacity indicated above., ~ ' •. . " !. -I"'-"

(Jyn/ti.
Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the .Peace

yA-nrS M ;A^l:e:k)rv-;j
Name and Title of- Notary or Jus}jjB^pfj[^^,^ace

.Mv- m
Mv Commission Exoires: ,?• ; ̂ y^^ssiON'*. ^
'  ̂ '—. PPIHES. —

ytu:

/ ,

The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester

RFP #17-OHHS-DCBCS-BBH-O1

.^endment#2
Page 2 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mobile Crisis Services and Support, Manchester and Surrounding towns

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date"-' ' ^

/I

Name:

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: • (date of meeting)

I  I -V /

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE '

Date Name:

Title:

The Mental Meatth Center of Greater Manchester

RFP #17-DHHS-DCBCS-BBH-01

Amendment #2

Page 3 of 3



EjiNb*B-6. AmendmentS2.-Budget Shwl ■ . J I.

New Hampshir* D«partment of Health and Human Services

BMdccfPT«9*m Name: TME MENTAL HEALTH CENmt OF GREATER MANCHESTER

Budget Reeiteel fer M08U CRISIS SERIES AND SUPPORTS

i  ■ ^ , i
Budget Perfed; JULY1i2ei« .JUNE M;2020

I  I -V

" ""vTu' ay.r»a.'e fn f«,?".';c«ntreet(ir.'ShsieV,M«tehHKC] n unoea

;
Llne'Rem • IncremenSssFxl:^ ̂iAxedEllM •iIncremental L ̂. UT? R' $lneiementalKrAi

1. TotM Salaranvaaet s .  1.301.500.00 6 139.500.00 S 1.501.000.00 3 564.000.00 3 65.000.00 3 649.000.00 5- 777.500.00 3 74.500.00 5 652.000.00

2. EmdO'ree Benefits % •  393.025.00 S . 40.950.00 s •433.975.00 3 167.500.00 '3 17.200.00 3  1 204.700.00 5 205.525.00 3 23.750.00 5 229.275.00

3. Consutanta % 6.000.00 s ■  'i.eoo:oo s 7.600.00 3 2.000.00 3 300.00 3:1 32.000.00 5 4.000.00 3 -1.500.00 5 S.SOO.OO

4. Eouioment; I s  - « s ■  1- : '3 . • .  - - 3 -

- Rental t s  • » $. - 1 1 . 3

Repefe- and MaMenance i s .. . i 3 • . 3 •

' PurchasefOeoredatlon ■ % :  ■ . S.000.00 s .• 1.325.00 % ■  • 9.325.00 3 ■  1,500.00 3- 425.00 -3 1.925.00 5 ' 6.500.00 3 900.00 3- - 7.400.00

5. SuMdes: »  • s •< . . • I .
=  • ) I 3 . 3 ■-

EducaOonM 3 .. • S- .3«.00 t 375.00 3 3 125.00 3 125.00 5 .3 - 250.00 3 250.00

• Lab s %  ■ . : . 3 3 -

Phatmacv t .• $ -  ■ i . 3 . . ■ • 3 -

MedkM ■ - • t .1.500.00 t. • • • -250.00 S 1.750.00 3 500.00 3 .100.00 3r: 600.00 5 .  1.000.00 .3 150.00 3 1.150.00

Ofllce % 21.250.00 s -  2,200.00 S 23.450.00 3 -  -9.000.00 3 -650.00 3 9.650.00 12J50.00 3 1.350.00 8' - 13.600.00

5. Travel •». a.soo.oo S - 950.00 s. - 9.450.00 3 3.500.00 3- 350.00 3 3.650.00 5 . 5.000.00 3 .600.00 .3 5.600.00

7. Ocomancv S .126.571.00 % '14.750.00 s. .  . 141:321.00 3 .66.021.00 3  . ' 6.200.00 3: 94J21.00 5 . 40.550.00 .3 ■ . 6.550.00 3 '47.100.00

S; Current Ejoeneet . . s s . .. s . . 3 J 1  . . . . 3 -

Teleohone' s 32.000.00 % 3.175.00 5 35.175.00 3 10.500.00 3 975.W -3 > .11.475.00 5 .  21.S0O.00 3 2.200.00 3 ' 23.700.00

Pottage- .. S  ' -  975.00 ■i 975.00 3 450.00 3 450.00 3 525.00 3 525.00

Suttetrtcderw S' . i .  . s . 3  . ■ . -. 3 . 3 • 3 -

' AudR end Leoai •$. 3.650.00 6  . 525.00 3 4.375.00 3 -  .1.350.00 3 200.00 •3 < 1.550.00 .3 .2.500.00 3 325.00 3 2.625.00

.bmrance _. • s 3.950.00 $ 700.00 3 - 4.650.00 .3 .  1.375.00 3 • 300.00 3.. 1.675.00 3 2.575.00 .3 400.00 3 2.975.00

BoardEwensee s 6 . 3 - .
I  ; - 3 - . • 3 •

9. Soaeari - EMR . - 'S 60.479.00 » -  7.025.00 3 .67.504.00 3 27.000.00 3 2.200.00 -3. . ■ 29.200.00 3 33.479.00 3 4.625.00 3  < .  36.304.00

10. Madtednf^Conanunicsiiont s -1.050.00 s -150.00 3- 1:200.00 3 300.00 3 * ! 50.00 3 . - 350.00 t  750.00 3 •100.00 3 650.00

11. Staff Education and Trawm; - - s 32.100.00 •3.250.00 3 35.350.00 3 -13,650.00 3 1.250.00 3 14.900.00 3 16.450.00 3 - 2.000.00 3 '20.450.00

12. Subeorrtraett/Aoreements . . . . . s . s -  • 3 • 3. • 3

13. Other •SecuctySer^ce*. Manchester PoOce s 119,500.00 $ 11.600.00 3 131JOO.OO 3 -44.000.00 3 3.950.00 3, - 47.950.00 3 •  75.500.00 3 7.650.00 3 63.150.00

13a. Other'Buldlno a Household SteoOee - s 14.925.00 s ■ ■ 1.345.00 3 ■  16.270.00 3 6.150.00 3 • 310.00 3- 1 -6.460.00 3 • 6.775.00 3 1.035.00 3 9.610.00

13b. Other • Food SuoeOeeOtsIs Aeartments s 3.650.00 S ' . 399.00 3 .  . 4.049.00 3 ' 3:000.00 3 264.00 3 '• . 3.264.00 3 - 650.00 3 135.00 3- -765.00
.  - »• - S • 1 ■ - . 3 . 3 .- 3 3  • 3 - 3 - 3 -

TOTAL $ 2,197,650.00 1 231,244.00 3 2,429,094.00 981,344.00 3 102.499.00 3  • 1,113,545.00 3 1.218.604.00 128,745.00 3 1,343,243.00

Indirect Ae A Percent or Direct •10.5*

i  I J  ,
t  ̂

1
i .

•Iv . .?(T

The MetMM HeaBh Center of Greiwar Mancfteetef Inc.
RFP.20174)HHS.OC8CS-88HC1
ENM B4. Amendment *2. Budget Siteet
Pagel oll-

.  I
Conaector MtWs

Date



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that THE MENTAL HEALTH

CENTER OF GREATER MANCHESTER, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in

New Hampshire on^October 17.-1960.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Scac^ of State's office iavc
been received and is in good Standing as fy as this office is concerned. ^ ..... ,, .

Business ID; 63323

Certificate Number: 0004505395

%

T3

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of .the Slate of New Hampshire,

•thiS-26^(tey-ofrA;pril-ATD.,2019r** -

William Gardner

#1#

Secretary.of State



ThomdS.LflvoiC
CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

do hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester.
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on Mav 21. 2019 :
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the President/Chief Executive Officer
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the day of Mav , 2019 .
(Date Contract Signed)

4. William Rider is the duly elected President/Chief Executive Officer
(Name of Contract Signatory) (TitlejDf Contract Signator

of the Agency.

CL , .
Signature of the Elected Officer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of l-liWshorGOjK.
The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of Miuj- 2oi3.,
Thomoj ici\roie

(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)

(Notary PuWici'Justice of the Peace)
(2nm 'Wl-

(Notary PublicfJustice of t

By

(WOTARY.SEAL) my
■' > " - • ^ a / COMMISSION \ $

=  ; EXPIRES S
^  .V . _ . 5 : NOV. 22,2022 ; =Commission Expiret: v : 5



ACORcf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE ' DATE (MMAD/VYYV)

• 04^5/2019 , :

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS :
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.;,

IMPORTANT; If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) rhust have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policias rnay require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate hoider.in lieu of such endorsement(s). '..

PRODUCER • • '

CGI Business Insurance

171 Londondenv Turnpike '

Hooksett • . • • • . . NH 03106 . .

CONTACT TerlOavls ' . • , ' .

Sri. P„,.. (S66)841V«0P . ■ V ■ :(603)622.4618.

ADDRESS- 'TP®Yls®CGIBuslnesslnsurance.com .
>  INSURER(S)AFFORDING COVERAGE' NAIC •

insurer'a: '.Philadelphiaindemnity Insurapce.
insured'.' ; . -

The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester. Inc.

401 Caress Street.

•  _ Manchester NH 03103-3628

INSURER B: Philadelphia indenvifty,Insurance . ..
insurerC: '^-'-M-Mutual , , . ' '

INSURER D:".'

INSURER E; ̂

INSURERF;' "..4.

COVERAGES- - • CERTIFICATE NUMBER: ..'•9-20 Master,, . ..V , REVISION NUMBER:
THIS ISTO CERTIFY THAT .THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD'
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER OOCUMENT-WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY, BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY .THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, ,
-EXCLUSIONS AND^ONDJTIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY,PAID.CLAIMS;, • • • >

poLievEPPsi
(MWDO^YYYYtTYPE OF INSURANCE

■XUDT
JI1S2

5UHR
ms •POLICY NUMBER

WLtCVEXP '
IMWDOrrYYY) . LIMITS .LTR .

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABtLITY_

•CLAIMS-MAO OS-oecuR-
Prpfesslonal Liabilty- S2M Agg -

EACH OCCURRENCE - ■
DAUACE TO RENTED ■
PREMISES (Ea occufreneel-

MEDEXP (Afiyona p«f»ofi)

Abuse Liability $1M Agg •. PHPK1958850 04/01/2019 04/01/2020 PERSONAL S ADV INJURY

GENT. AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY CD n .LOC
OTHER: • ' • wT- •

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OPAOG

Sexual/Physical Abuse or
00M8INE{>GINGLE LIMIT
(Ea accktentl ■ ■ ' • '

1.000.000

.ioo.ooo._,:._-_

5.000.

1.000,000

3.000.000

3,000.000

S 1.000.000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY -

ANYAUTO

•$ 1,000.000

BODILY INJURY (P«f parson]

OWNED." ;
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY"

. .1 "

SCHEDULED
AUTOS "
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

PHPH1958852 04/01/2019 04/01/2020 BODILY INJURY (Per acdOant).

"PRCRSfTMKSE
fPeracdOent)

Medical Payments ;, S 5,000.

X UMBRELLA LIAB—^
EXCESS LIAB.

DEO X

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE 10.000.000

PHUB669112 04/01/2019' 04/01/2020 AGGREGATE 10.000,000

RETENTION S 10.000
OTH--
1S_

WORKERS COMPENSATION ;
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY •
ANY PR0PRIET0R4»ARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In N_H)- -
If yes. bescfttw under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below "

X STATUTE-
• 1 f M

0 N/A ECC6004000298-2018A' 09/12/2018 09/12/2019 E.L. EACH ACCIDENT .500.000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE 500.000

E.L: DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT • 500.000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS ILOCATTONSI VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Ramarks Scliedule. may be attached H more space Is required) .

"Supplemental Names" Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc., Manchester Mental Health Realty. Inc.,.Manchester Mental Health Sen/ices. Inc.!
Manchester Mental Health Ventures. Inc.
This Certificate is issue for insured operations usual to Mental Health Services.

State of NH Dept. of Health's Human Services '
129 Pleasant St

Concord NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE '
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL'BE DELIVERED IN ..
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25.(2016/03) . The ACORD name and logo are registered rnarks of ACORD



.  The MentaLl Health Center
o/ Greater Manchester

MISSION

to empower individuals to achieve recovery:ahd promote
persohdl and community wellness through ah accessible,
comprehensive, integrated and evidence-based system of
behavioral health care.' ' . . ■

w l i - ̂  . VISION

Jo promote prevention recovery and wejihess, and strive to be
a center of excellence and sought after partner fn developing
and delivering state-of-the-art behavipral health treatment
integratedTwithin our.cbmmunity^ r

GUIDING VALUES AND PRINCl^

We treat ej/eryphe with respect, cprriRassjop and;dignity. ,

"WeJiffer hope atid recovery through individualizedT^quaiity;
-behaviorai-heaTth-services'. .

, . 4...X •.

We provide.evidence-based, culturally responsive and cbnsurner,
family focused care,, ' ■ " '

We support skilled staff, rnerhbers who work together and strive for
excellence. ' .

We pursue partnerships that promote wellness and create a
healthy community.

Revised and Approved by the Board of Directors on Septeniber 25,2018



The . Mental Health Center of .Greater. Manchester, I nc.: .
■ and'Manchester Merita! Health Fouhdation.'lnc^ -

-COMBINING FINANCIAL SIATEMEfe;^-^ v..CC
C-' Vsi . >, i; •

June 30, 2018 !-

i—v..,;-

- r«r-' '

-r- ,T.



I'

The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.
and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.
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INDgPgNDENt AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors . . . •

of the Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.
and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

We.have audlted'the accpmpahying cornblning financial statements of The Mental Health Center of Gre'ater:
-Manchester, Inc.. and its affiliate Manchester: Mental, Health Foundation. Inc.^ {nopprpfit prgahizations)^
rwhich - compriseUhe-combining„8tatehrient_df_fiSnclS]l"^^^^ rJun^SO,'. 20^8.:, ahd the'Terated'
cornbiriing staterriehts of activities and cash flov^ for-the year then ended, and the related notes to the-
combining firiahcial statements;



To the Board of Directors

of The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.
and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.
Page 2

Opinion:

In our ppihion, the combining financial statements referred to.above present fairly, in all rhaterial.respe^^^^
the individual and cornbining financial pdsl^pns of The Wlental.Health Center of Greater,M^nchpster, -Inc.
and Manchester Mentdl Health Foundation, Inc. as of June 30; 20,Ti^nd;the changes in net.assets andjts
cash flows "for the yea7 then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Other Matter

Our audit-was conducted for the purpose of,forming an opinion on..the financial statements as a whoje. The
Supplerhimai7' .pages.20 .through 23 is presented;f6r-purpo.se analysis,^and is not a
required pa?t of the financial statements, "Such information is the responsibility of management and was

'derive-d^'iff^nd-relates- directly to the-underlying- accountihg^^and^-Olher-TeOords-osed-tO: prepare:4he:
Inancfal statements. Such Infbrmatiori is'the Responsibility of " management. anlJ'Was7derived from "and;
relates directly- to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied. In the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such Information directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in Jhe United States of America. In pur opinion, the' information is fairly stated in ail material
respects.in relation to the financial statements as a-whole. ^ . ■

St. Albans, Vermont
October-24. 2018 .



The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.

and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30, 2018

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Accounts Receivable, net

Other Accounts Receivable

Due From Affiliate

Investments

Prepaid Expenses

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

MHCGM Foundation

Eliminating Combined

Entries Total

$ 6,216,262 $ 19.675

1.286.113

483,278

394,375

28,525

3,880,108

8,382,028 3,928,308

(28,525)

$ 6,237,937

1,286,113

483,278

3,880,108

394,375

(28,525) 12,281,811

PROPERTY.'PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,

Net of accumulated depreciation

-TOTAL-ASSETS-

*  14':349,13'1 14.349.131

-$^27731r159"-"$-3,928.308- -$— (28,525)-$-26.630;942"

LIABILITIES And NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable $  166,634 $  - $ - $  166,634

Accrued Payroll & Vacation, other accruals ... 3,250,340 710 - 3,251,050

Deferred Revenue 46,159 - - 46,159

T." Due To Affiliate ■ -r.-28,525 - (28,525) -  ■

77^ Current Portion of Long-Term Debt • • -201,405 - - 201,405

- Amounts held for Patients and Other Deposits 17,473 - - 17,473

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES . 3,710,536 710 (28,525) 3,682,721

EXTENDED ILLNESS LEAVE, Long term - 415,165 - - 415,165

POST-RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION . 71,225 .  .
- .  71,225

LONG-TERM DEBT, less current maturities and

unamortized debt issuance costs 7,213,619 - - 7,213,619

NET ASSETS

Unrestricted 11,320,614 3,587,909 - 14,908,523

Temporarily restricted - 107,392 - 107,392

Permanently restricted - 232,297 - 232,297

TofAL NET ASSETS 11,320,614 3,927,598 - 15,248,212

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 22,731',159 , $ 3,928,308 $ (28.525) $ 26,630,942

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.

and Manchester Mental Health Foundation,.Inc.

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the Year End^ June 30. 2018

REVENUE AND OTHER SUPPORT

Program Service Fees

Fees and Grants from Governmental Agencies

Rental Income

Other Income

MHCGM FoundaMon
>  Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted Unrestricted Restricted Restricted

Eliminating

Entries

21,293,641 $

2,879,822

, *626,055'
'5,^,646

TOTAL REVENUE AND OTHER SUPPORT -^'30i684,164

Combined

Total

$ 21,293,641

2,879,822

626,055
5,884,646

- 30,684^164

OPERATING EXPENSES

Program Services;

Children & Adolescents

Elderly

Emergency Services

Vocational Services '

Non-Eliglbles

Mutli-Service Team_ ..
ACT_Team J.. ,

Crisis Unit - '•

Community Residences & Support Living

Other - * .

Total Program Services

Supporting Services

, Management and General

Property

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES' '

INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS

NON-OPERATING REVENUE/(EXPENSES)

Contributions

Interest/Dividend Income

Investment Gain

Dues

-  Donations to MHCGM ' . - —

Miscellaneous Expenses

.  NON-OPERATING REVENUE/
(EXPENSES), NET

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING'OF YEAR

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR

4,372,890

320,757

.1,934,951

' ■"i!M2~53^'''
.^7.,264.290...

_3:2I0.4.5.7„i ^
-  4,689,604
,  1,552,426

-1,149,581

26,550,058

3,210,540

.. 1,001,958

—^30:762,556
.1,..

4,372,890
320,757.

1,934,951
:r592,568'
i:382^34

. 7,284,290
^^7.0..4S7_
4,689,604
1,552,426

-  - 1,149,581

26,550,058

(85,000) 3,125,540

1,001,958

(85,000) - -30;677;556-

85,000 r • 6,608

461,811 85,336 20,000
r*r'

(242,703) 324,444
•  , 26,587 111,728 . -  _ 138,315

, 215,623 - .... 215,623

-  »•
(4,800) - ■  , . (4,800)

r -..{157,703)
(6,684)

-
. 157,703 ^

-'(6.684)

' 488,398 243,500 20,000 '(85,000) ■ 666,898

410,006 243,500- 20,000 673,506

10,910,608 3,344,409 87,392 232,297 . - 14,574,706

$ 11,320,614 $ 3,587,909 $ 107,392 $ 232,297 $ - $ 15,248,212

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.

and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended June 30,2018

I  •' > r Eliminating Combined

MHCGM Foundation Entries- Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets $  410,006 $  .263.500 $ $  673,506

Adjustrhents to reconcile change in net assets

to net cash provided by operating activities:'
Depreciation and amortization 631.889 •* - 631.889

Unrealized gainpn investments -  ■ (163,957) (163,957)

Realized gain on investments (72,387) ^(7i2,387)
Decrease (Increase) in Operating Assets:^. V . ■

Accounts Receivable 1,410 - - 1,410

Other Accounts Receivable 403,268 - - 403,268

Due from Affiliate • 27,060 - (27,060)

Prepaid Expenses -*r. (257,073)
**

-  ' .(257,073)

*  Increase (Decrease) ih"OpeTatih'§-;Liabilitie^'* '
K- . * Stp--

Accounts Payable . " . ^ (194,334) - (194,334)

Due to Affiliate' ~(27;060)'" - 27!6'60*' -

Accrued Experises and Other Current Liabilities (112,131) -  • '(112,131)

Deferred Revenue (27,983) ' -  ■ (27,983)

Amounts held for Patients and Other Deposits 9,764 -

"■ ■ 9,764

Post Retirement Benefit Obligation (1,725) - - (1.725)
Extended Illness Leave 17,925 - - 17,925

NET CASH PROVIDED BY-- -v..

OPERATING ACTIVmES*'"' 853,956 54,216 908,172

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES ___.

Purchase of property, plant, and equipment, net (2,555,171) - - (2,555,171)
Finance costs incurred (104,609) - (104,609)
Proceeds from sale of investments - '85,489 85,489
Purchase of investments - -  . ...  (138,793) — , - . (138,793)

NET CASH USED IN.

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
•«. •«

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long-term debt reduction

NET INCREASE (DECREASE)JN CASH

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AT END OF YEAR .

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES

Real Estate acquired with long-term debt
Interest.paid

(2,659,780)"' (53,304) (2,713,084)

(169,956)

•

(169,956)

(1,975,780) .912 "  (1,974.868)

8.194,042 18,763 8,212,805

$ 6,218,262 $ 19,675 $ -  $6,237,937

$7,680,000 $ -  $ -  $
$  218,077 $. -  $ -  $

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc;
and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

NOTES TO COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc. (the "Center") a not-for-profit
corporation, organized under New Hampshire law to provide services in the areas of mental
health, and related non-rnental health programs is exempt from income taxes under Section
501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. In addition, the organization qualifies for the
charitable contribution deduction under Section 170 (b)(1)(a),and has been classified as an
organization that is not a private foundation under Section 509(a)(2).

In July 1990. the Center was reorganized and Manchester .Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

(the "Foundation") became the sole corporate member of the Center. The Foundation is also
a 501(c)(3). The Foundation's purpose is to raise and invest funds for the benefit of the
Center. .

In Jul^2017. the Center acquired commercial real estate in Manchestej;,_New Hampshire
~th5t'iL^previ6usly 'leased' a portion' *ofr'j*As of"Jun'e'~30;~'2"018r^;'the~Center"occupies'
approximately 31,000 square feet of the approximately 65,000 square Teet in the building.
The remaining square footage is leased to unrelated third parties and the entire building is
managed by an unrelated management company engaged by the Center.

Basis of Presentation

The cornbining financial statements include the accounts of The Mental Health Center of
Greater Manchester, Inc. and its affiliate. Manchester MentalrHealth Foundation, Inc. All
inter-company transactions and accounts have been eliminated in;Comblnatlon.

Estirfiates

,The preparation of financial statements in. conformity with .generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly,- actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Income Taxes

Consideration has been given to uncertain tax positions. The federal income tax returns for
the years ended after June 30, 2015, remain open for potential examination by major tax
jurisdictions, generally for three years after they were filed.

State Grants

The Center receives a number of grants from, and has entered into various contracts with the
State of New Hampshire related to the delivery of mental health services.



The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester. Inc.

and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

NOTES TO COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .

June 30, 2018

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Depreciation

The cost of property, equipment and Improvements is depreciated over the estimated, useful
life of the assets using the straight line method. Assets deemed to have a useful life greater
than three years are deemed capital In nature. Estimated useful lives range from 3 to 40
years.

Vacation Pav and Frinae Benefits

Vacation pay is accrued and charged to the programs when earned by the employee. Fringe
benefits are allocated to the appropriate program expense based on the percentage of actual
time spent on the programs.

——7— T^Revenue

~  Re'^hue from'federal, state and'other sourceslgre'cognized'in'tlie period earned:

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded based on amounts billed for services provided, net of
respective contractual adjustments and bad debt allowances.

Policy for Evaluating Collectabiiitv of Accounts Receivable

In evaluating the collectability of accounts recejvabjer the Center analyzes past results and
identifies trends for each major payor source of revenue for the purpose of estimating.the
appropriate amounts of the allowance for co'htractual adjustments and bad debts. Data in
each major payor source is regularly reviewed to evaluate the adequacy of the allowance for
contractual adjustments and doubtful accounts; Specifically, for receivables relating to
services provided to clients having third-party coverage, an allowance for contractual
adjustments and doubtful accounts and -a corresponding provision for contractual
adjustments and bad debts are established foramoUnts outstanding for an extended period
ofjinie and for third-party payors experiencing financial difficulties: for receivables relating to
self-pay clients, a provision for bad debts is m"ade in the period services are rendered based
on experience indicating the inability or unwillingness of clients to pay amounts for which
they are financially responsible.

Based on management's assessment, the Center provides for estimated contractual
allowances and uncollectible amounts through a charge to earnings and a credit to a
valuation allowance. Balances that remain outstanding after the Center has used reasonable
collection efforts are written off through a change to the valuation allowance and a credit to
accounts receivable.

During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Center maintained its estimate in the allowance for
doubtful accounts at 68% of total accounts receivable. The allowance for doubtful accounts

decreased to $2,697,713 as of June 30, 2018 from $2,814,022 as of June 30, 2017. This
was a result of an overall decrease in accounts receivable from $4,110,534 as of June 30.
2017 to $3,983,826 as of June 30, 2018. The allowance reflects this decrease accordingly.



The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.
and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

NOTES TO COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Client Service Revenue

The Center recognizes client service revenue relating to services rendered to clients that
have third-party payor coverage and are self- pay. The Center receives reimbursement from
Medicare, Medicald and Insurance Companies at defined rates for services to clients
covered by such third-party payor programs. The difference between the established billing
rates and the actual rate of reimbursement is recorded as allowances when received. For,

services rendered to uninsured clients (I.e., self-pay clients), revenue Is recognized on the
basis of standard or negotiated discounted rates. At the time services are rendered to self-
pay clients, a provision for bad debts is recorded based on experience and the effects of
newly Identified circumstances and trends In pay rates. Client service revenue (net of
contractual allowances and discounts but before taking account of the provision for bad .
debts) recognized during the .year,ended June 30, 2018 totaled $21,293,641, of_whichr^_

•  $20,92T,393 was revenue ffbm'thifd-party payors and $372,248 "was revenue from-self-payTr
clients.

Permanently restricted net assets are restricted by donors and to be maintained In
perpetuity. Income eamed on permanently riestricted net assets, to the extent not restricted
by the donor. Including net realized appreciation on Investments, would be Included In the
statement of activities as unrestricted resources or as a change In temporarily restricted net
assets In accordance with donor-intended purposes.

Included In the Foundation's unrestricted net assets is $600,000 of board designated net
assets, which was the result of a board approved donation from the Center to the foundation
during the year ended June 30, 2015 of $600,000.

Cash and Cash Equivalents.

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Company considers all short-term debt
securities purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Temporarllv and Permanentiv Restricted Net Assets _

Gifts are reported as either temporarlly-or permanently restricted support if they are received-.-
with donor stipulations that limit tfie-use of dpnated assets. -T."

Temporarily restricted net assets are thiose whose use by the Center or Foundation has been
limited by donors to a specific time period or purpose. When a donor restriction expires
(when a stipulated time restrictlon^ends .or purpose restriction is accornpllshed), temporarily. .
restricted net assets are reclasslfied as unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement
of operations as either net assets-released from restrictions (for non-capital related Items) or
as net assets released from restrictions-used for capitalpurchases (capital related items).



The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.
and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

NOTES TO COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee Benefit Program

The Center maintains a tax-sheltered annuity benefit program, which covers substantially all
employees. Eligible employees may contribute up to maximum limitations.(set annually by
the IRS) of their annual salary. After one year's employment, the employees' contributions
are matched by the Center up to 5 percent of their annual salary. The combined amount of
employee and erhployer..conlrlbutions Is subject by law to yearly maximum amounts. .The
employer match was $464,473 for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Postretirement Medical Benefits

The Center sponsors an unfunded defined benefit postretirement plan covering certain of its
employees (employedrprlor to Jariuary .1,1997), In 200.8, all eligible active employees were
offered and acc^pfed"^l5^uyout of^he" program leaving the plan to provldelffedlcarbehefitrto'
eligible retired employees^ See Note 8 for further discussion of the Plan. _

For retirements prior to January 1, 1997, benefits are based upon quoted premium rates.
For retirements on or after January 1, 1997 up to June 30, 2007, the benefits are based on
monthly premiums frozen at their December 31, 1996 level. The plan Is funded as premiums
are paid.

Malpractice Loss Contingencies _

The Center has an.occurrence basis policy for Its malpractice Insurance coverage. An
occurrence basis poNcy- provides specific coverage for claims resulting from incidents that
occur during the policy term, regardless of when the claims are reported to the Insurance
carrier. The possibility exists, as a normal risk of doing business, that malpractice claims In
excess of insurance coverage may be asserted against the Center. In the event a loss
contingency should occur, the Center would give It appropriate recognition In^ its-financial
statements., -

NOTE 2 CLIENT SERVICE REVENUES FROM THIRD PARTY PAYORS

The Center has agreements with third-party payers that provide payments to the Center at
established rates. These payments Include:

New Hampshire and Manaoed Medlcald

The Center Is reimbursed for services from the State of New Hampshire and
Managed Care Organizations for services rendered to Medlcald clients on the
basis of fixed Fee for Service and Case Rates.

Approximately 74% of net client service revenue Is from participation In the state and
managed care organization sponsored Medlcald programs for the year ended June 30, 2018.
Laws and regulations governing the Medlcald programs are complex and subject to
Interpretation and change. As a result, it Is reasonably possible that recorded estimates
could change materially In the near term.



The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.
and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

NOTES TO COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018 '

NOTE 3 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - TRADE

Due from clients $ 1,842,016

" Managed medicaid 305,365
Medicaid receivable 517,135

.  Medlcare.recelvable .205,506.:

Other Insurance 1,113,804

;  ' . . 3,983,826
Allowance . (2,697,713)-

^

■ ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - OTHER

$1,286/1.13-

Amoskeag Residences $' '6,131
BBH - Cypress Center 56,250-

BBH-MCRT 99,707

BBH-IRB 5,250

Boston-University -3/149-

Cathojic-Medical Center "I .-^^0-.
- Cenpatico — ̂ 58;108-

Comrnunity Connection 12,16^^

Dartmputh 34,323 '

Farnum Center .::2'088

Harvard Pilgrim 58,856

Manchester Community Health "8,460,
Mobile Community, Health 2,876

. North'BTioreDT ' "WeT

Two Wall Street Tenants " 8,989-

Mscellaneous accounts receivable ■ 3,460

$ 483,278



The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.
and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

NOTES TO COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 4 INVESTMENTS

Investments are presented in the combining financial statements at market value as follows:

Cost Market

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Marketable Equity Securities
$  62,337 $ 62,337
3,398,652 3,817,771

TOTAL

Investment retum consisted of the following:

^visory Fees

^-Net realized gain
.  Annualized unrealized gain, net

$3,460,989 $3,880,108

J $ ..(20,721)
7-2;387

163,957

TOTAL INVESTMENT GAIN $, 215,623

NOTE 5 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Foundation's investments are reported at fair value'in'the accompanying statement of
. _.'ne.t:assets available for benefits. The methods used to mea.sure fair value may produce an

.. .. amount that may not be indicative of net realizable' or reflective of future fair values.
— Furthermore, although the Foundation believes its valuations-methods are appropriate and
— consistent with other market participant, the use of different-methodologies or assumptions to

measure the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value at

^ .the reporting date. . _

_ The fair value measurement accounting literature establishes a fair value hierarchy that
— • prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used tbimeasure fair value. This hierarchy

consists of three broad levels: Level 1 inputs .consist of unadjusted quotes prices In active
~ ■ 7~m'aTkets "for identical assets and have the ■.highe5t~pTibrityr an'd Level 3 inputs are

unobservable and have the lowest priority.

The Foundation uses appropriate valuation techniques based on the available inputs to
measure the fair value of its investments. When available, the Foundation measures fair
value using Level 1 inputs because they generally provide the most reliable evidence of fair
value. Level 2 input valuation methods are described in detail below and Level 3 inputs were
only used when Level 1 or Level 2 inputs were not available.

Level 1 Fair Value Measurements

The fair value of mutual funds, equities and options are valued at the daily closing price as
reported by the fund. Mutual funds, equities and options held by the Foundation are open-
end and are registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission. These funds are
required to publish their daily net asset value (NAV) and to transact at that price. The
investments held by the Foundation are deemed to be actively traded.



The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.
and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

NOTES TO COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTES FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

The following table presents by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Foundation
investment assets at ̂ ir value, as of June 30, 2018. As required by professional accounting
standards, investment assets are classified in their entirety based upon the lowest level of
input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

Quoted Price In Significant

■ Active" Markets Other Significant

For Identical Observable Unobservable

Assets Inputs Inputs

Description 06/30/18 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

' Gash and Cash.Equivalents $  62,337- 62r337---$ ■ . - $

FivftH InrnmA

Corporate Bonds 569,776 569,776 - -

Mutual Funds:

Bank Loans 170,137 170,137 ' -

Diversified Emerging Mkts 166,396 166,396 - -

—-■ Foreign Large Blend -- 279,219 — 279,219
- -  -

—-

. .. 1-. Exchange Traded Fund 306,740 -:306,740 - .  ►

— Foreign Large Growth • 180,050 " -1.80.050 - -

Health 145,841 _ 145,841 ' - -

Inflation Protected Bond 67,219 67,219 -

^  Intermediate Term Bond ' 106,129 106,129 -

•Large Blend 869,404 869,404 - -

_  Large Value 187,936 187,936 - -

' J'"

Large Growth 219.400 219,400
•• • • • -h:

- -

Market Neutral 51,217 '■."51",217-
.

'  rr
Nontraditional Bond 126,524 -  -126,524 - - -

Technology 126,815 " 126,815 - -

World Bond 148,712 148,712 - -

World Small/Md Stock 96,256 96,256
*  ■,)

-

^

Total $ 3,880,108 $  3,880,108 $ $
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The Mental Health Center of Greater'Manchester, Inc.
and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

NOTES TO COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 6 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs
are charged to expense as incurred and expenditures for major renovations are capitalized.
Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets being depreciated.

Property and equipment cohsisted of the following at June 30, 2018:

Land

Buildings and improvements

Furniture and equiprhent

Accumulated depreciation .

$ 2,143,708

15,465,893

2,358,028

19,967,629

{5,618,498)

$14,349,131

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2018 was^$622,300.

NOTE 7 DEFERRED REVENUE

CIP Grant

Feed NH Grant —' "~

Great Manchester Charitable Trust-

Mscellaneous deferred revenue •-

NH Charitable Foundation

Pearl Manor Senios Initiative-Grant

Stigma Symposium

13,088

5,000

3,245

8

10,348

9,835

4,635

$  46,159

NOTE 8 EXTENDED ILLNESS LEAVE (EIL)

The following table sets forth the Center's funded status of EIL as of June 30, 2018:

Net Post-Retirement Health Cost:

Service cost

Interest cost

Net post retirement health cost

$  30,858

15,007

$  45,865

11



The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.
and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

NOTES TO COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 8 EXTENDED ILLNESS LEAVE (EIL) (continued)

Change in Accumulated Projected Benefit Obligation:

Accumulated benefit obligation at beginning of year

Service cost

Interest cost

Actuarial loss.

Benefits paid

Benefit obligation at end of year

Balance Sheet Liability:.

Accumulated postreti[ement benefit obligation
"  ■ 'JI/Fair valu^f'blaiT'^^ts'"'^

$ 397,240

30,858

15,007

6,858 -

(i34.798)

$ 415,165

$ 415,165

Unfunded accumulated postretirement benefit obligation $ 415.165

Reconciliation of Accrued Costs:

Accrued post retirement health cost at beginning of year $ 545,874

Net post retirerhent health cost for the year ' 38,989
Contributions made during the year (benefits paid) " (34,797)

Accnjed post retirement health cost at end of year

Estimated Future-Benefit Payments:

2018-2019

2019.-202d_
2020 - 2021

2021 -2022

2022 - 2023

2023 - 2028

Expected contribution for next fiscal year

$ 550,066

$  62,700
76,900-

.  32,100
31,700
24,800

172,200

^  62.700
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The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.
and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

NOTES TO COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 8 EXTENDED ILLNESS LEAVE (EIL) (continued)

Change in Balance Sheet Liability:

Balance sheet liability at beginning of year $ (397,240)

Net actuarial gain arising during the year . (6,858)

Increase from current year service and interest cost (45,865)
Contributions made during the year 34,798

Balance sheet liability at end of year $ (415,165)

Amounts Recognized as Adjustments to Unrestricted Net Assets:

•• - —Adjustments-to;unrestricted net assets from adoption of—^ "~-
of FAS 158 at beginning pf year $ J148,636)

... _ .... — -Net.actuarial-(gain)-or-loss.arising.duringthe.year :^6r858_

Reclassification from amortization of net actuarial loss

recognized during the year 6,877

Unrestricted net assets not yet classified as NPBC
---at end of year $~£134r90^)

. Unrestricted Net Assets Not Yet Classified As Net _ .
Postretirement Benefit Cost: — —

Unrecognized prior service cost $
Unrecognized net actuarial gain or (loss) ;}..(134,901)

Unrestricted net assets not yet classified as NPBC .
-  - at end of year $ (134,901)

Unrestricted Net Assets Expected to be Reclassified as Net
Postretirement Benefit Cost in Next Fiscal Year:

Recognition net Actuarial (Gain)/Loss in next
fiscal year's expense

,The weighted-average discount rate used in determining the accumulated benefit obligation
was 4.22% at June 30, 2018.
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The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.
and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

NOTES TO COMBINING FINANCjAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2018

NOTE 9 OTHER POST^RETIREMENT HEALTH BENEFIT PLAN

During 2007, the Center offered a buyout to employees who would have been eligible to
participate in the post-retirement health plan upon their retirement. As a result, no additional
employees will be enrolled in the plan. Only current retirees participate in the plan.

During 1997, the Center amended the plan to freeze monthly premiums at their December
31, 1996 level and to no longer provide the postretirement benefit to employees hired after

.  . December 31,.1996. the weighted-average annual assumed.rate of increase in per capita
cost of covered benefits (i.e., health care cost trend rate) was 4.22% for the year ending
June 30, 2018; and 4.00% per year for retirements that occurs on or after January 1, 1997.
until those retirees' monthly premium cap of $188 is reached.

Net Post-Retirement Health Cost:

interest cost ' ' ' ""--v * ^" 2,673
..I — ,Net.arn.orlizatlon:Of (gain). . . --- — 7.541 _

Net post retirement health cost/(income) $ 10,214

Change in Accumulated Projected Benefit Obligation:

.  Accumulated benefit obligation at beginning of year.-. :-i... - $ - 72,950

Interest cost _ 2,673

Actuarial loss -IL.. -I. 7,541
7" Benefits paid ■ (11,939)

Benefit obligation at end of year 2_il;225

FASB Balance Sheet Liability: . _

Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation ' - ' $ 71,225-
Fair value of plan assets . * . -

Unfunded accumulated postretirement benefit obligation $ ' 71,225

Reconciliation of Accrued Costs:

Accrued benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 166:358

Net post retirement health cost/(income) for the year (6,911)
Contributions made during the year (benefits paid) (11,939)

- Accrued post retirement health cost at end of year $ 147,508'

14



The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.
and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

NOTES TO COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 9 OTHER POST-RETIREMENT HEALTH BENEFIT PLAN (continued)

Gains and losses in excess of 10% of the greater of the benefit obligation and the fair value
of assets are amortized over the average remaining service period of active participants.

Assumptions

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine Benefit Obligations at June 30, 2018:

Discount rate . 4.22%

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for
health care plans. A 1% change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the
following effects:

•  "

1% Increase 1% Decrease.

Effect on total of service and interest cost components
of net'periodic postretirementVe*a1lh''ciiFe b'ehefitcost ' $" ' 2,747 " $" 2:604-

Effect on the health care component of the accumulated
postretirement benefit obligation

1 % Increase 1 % Decrease

69.651

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine Net Periodic Benefit Cost at June 30,
2018: - ^ '

Discount rate

Cash Flows

Estimated Future Benefit Payments:

2018-2019- ■ ■

2019-2020

2020-2021

2021 -2022

2022 - 2023

2023 - 2028

Expected contribution for next fiscal year:

Change in Balance Sheet Liability;

Balance sheet liability at beginning of year

Net actuarial gain or (loss) arising during the year

Increase from current year service and interest cost
Contributions made during the year

$  11,100
10,100
8,300
7,200
6,100

,19,700

$  11.100

$  (72,950)

(7,541)

(2,673)
11,939

Balance sheet liability at end of year $  (71.225)
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The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.
and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

NOTES TO COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 9 OTHER POST-RETIREMENT HEALTH BENEFIT PLAN (continued)

Amounts Recognized as Adjustments to Unrestricted Net Assets:

Adjustments to unrestricted net assets from adoption of

of FAS ISS atbeginiiingofyear $ (93,409)

Net actuarial (gain) arising during the year 7,541

Reclassification from .amortization of net actuarial loss

recognized during the year 9,584

Unrestricted net assets not yet classified as NPBC
at end of year $ (76,284)

Reconciliation of Accfued'Costs:

_  Unrecognized prior sen/ice-cost $ — ^
Unrecognized net actuarial gain or (loss) (76,284)

Unrestricted net assets not yet classified as NPBC
at end of year $ (76,284)

Unrestricted Net Assets Expected to be Reclassified as Net . .
Postretirement Benefit-Cost irMMext Fiscal Year:

Recognition of net Actuarial (Gain) Loss in next — •
fiscal year's expense $__^8j6^)

NOTE 10 LINE OF CREDIT

As of June 30, 2018. the organization had available a line of credit with a bank with an upper
limit of $2,500,000. The-line was not utilized as of June 30, 2018. These funds are available
with interest charged at TO Bank, N.A. Base Rate (5% as of June 30, 2018). The line.of
credit is due on demand.
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The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.
and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

NOTES TO COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 11 LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consisted of the following at June 30, 2018:

Bond payable to a bank, due July 2027, with interest only

payments at 3.06% through November 2025. Fixed principal

payments commence December 2025. Secured by specific

real estate.,. $ 5,760,0pp

Note payable to a bank, due December 2025, monthly principal

and interest payments of $23,433 at a 4.4% interest rate.

Secured by specific real estate. 1,750,044

Total long-term'^debt before unamortized debt issuance costs 7,510,044

~ Less: Current Portion ' (201,405)

Less: Unamortized debt issuance costs (95,020)

LONG-TERJM PORTION $ 7,213,619

Aggregate principal'payments on long-term debt, due within the..nexffive years and
thereafter ar^-as foHpvys: * • ——

-Year Ending

June 30,

2019. $ 201,405

2020 ' 210,448

2021 219,897

2022- 229,770 ^
2023 . 240,086 . \ '

Thereafter 6,408,438

$ 7,510,044

Interest expense for the year ending June 30, 2018 was $248,772. In accordance with ASU
2015-03, the amortization of debt issuance costs of $9,589 is reflected in Interest expense.
The remaining balance of $239,183 is interest related to the above debt for the year ended
June 30, 2018.
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The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.

and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

NOTES TO COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 12 LEASE OBLIGATIONS

The Center leases certain facilities and equipment under operating leases which expire at
various dates. Aggregate future minimum payments under non-cancelable operating leases
with terms of one year or more as of June 30, 2018 are as follows:

2019

2020

2021

2022

$  78,856
65,107
34,851

14,777

Rent expense was $70,579 for the year ended June 30, 2018.

NOTE 13 LEASES IN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF LESSORS

In jJuly 2017, the Center acquired real estate it prevlously_^parliaJly leased located at 2 Wall
"Sh^et'in' Manchester, New' Hampshire. the'Center leases~tlte""real estate^it does no^ccupy
to non-related third parties. Aggregate fufure minimum lease payments to be received under
non-cahcelable operating leases with terms of one year or more as of June 30, 2018 are as
follows:

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

Thereafter

$ 380,542
■j:268,135

176,199
"--.61,350

- -61,350
,"71.575

Base rent income was $479,731 for the year ended June 30, 2018.

NOTE 14 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Amoskeaa Residences. Inc. was formed byjhe Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester,
Inc. the board of directors for Amoskeag Residences, Inc. is comprised of members of
management from the Center. Included in accounts receivable as of June 30, 2018 is $6,131
due to the Center from Amoskeag Residences, Inc. The Mental Health Center of Greater
Manchester, Inc. Is reimbursed for services it provides to Amoskeag Residences, Inc., such
as bookkeeping services, insurance coverage, and repairs and maintenance services. The
amounts for the years; ended June 30, 2018 are as follows:...

Billed

Reimbursed

$  81.825
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The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester. Inc.
and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

NOTES TO COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 15 CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

The Center held deposits with TO Bank N.A. totaling $6,390,322 as of June 30, 2018. Of this
amount $97,704 is in excess of FDIC coverage of $250,000 and collateralized Federal
repurchase agreements totaling $6,042,618 as of June 30, 2018.

The Foundation held investments with LPL Financial totaling $3,880,108 as of June 30,
2018. Of this amount $3,380,108 is in excess of SIPC coverage of $500,000 and is
uninsured.

The Center grants credit without collateral to its clients, most of who are area residents and
are insured under third-party payor agreements. The mix of receivables due from clients and
third-party payers at June 30, 2018 is as follows:

- Due from clients

Managed medicaid

•— Medicaid -

MediciTre ~

Other Insurance

46 %

8

.13- .

" 5~^

28

m %

NOTE 16- SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In accordance with professional accountin^stan'dpds, the Center and Foundation has
evaluated subsequent events through October 247-2018, which is the date these basic
financial statements were available to be issued. All subsequent events requiring recognition
as of June 30, 2018, have been incorporated jntp_these basic-financial statements herein..
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The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.

and Manchester Mental Health Foundation, Inc.

ANALYSIS OF ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

For the Year Ended June 30,2018

Accounts

Receivable

Beginning

of Year

Gross

Fees

Contractual Bad Debts

Allowances and Other

& Discounts Charges

Cash

Receipts

Accounts

Receivable

End of

Year

CLIENT FEES $ 1,570,357 $ 4,806.240 $ (4,433,992) $ 367,288 $ (467,877) $ 1,842,016

MANAGED MEDICAID 305,365 17,998,203 (5,377,020) 23,133 (12,644,316) 305,365
»  t

MEDICAID^ 343,618 -«5,506,313: .(2,390,139) 101,483' ' (3,044,140) 517.135

M^ICARE _ _

OTHER INSURANCE 1,683,809 6,461,888, (2,587,724) (1.494,448) (2,949,721)- '1,113.804

TOTAL ■

207,385- , 1,950,286. ,—, (660,118) (368,566)^_ (923,481).. 205,506-

$  4,110,534 $ 36,722,930 $ (15,448,993) $ (1,371,110) $ (20,029,535) .$ 3,983,826

-

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc.

and Manchester Mental Health Foundation. Inc.

ANALYSIS OF BBH REVENUES. RECEIPTS AND RECEIVABLES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

BBH

Receivable

End

of Year

BBH

Revenues

Per

Audited

Financial

Statemehts

Receipts

for

Yea~r

BBH

Receivable

End

of Year

CONTRACT YEAR, June 30. 2018 $  398,203 $ 3,044,739 $ (3,280,057) $ 162.885

Analysisof Receipts: ---rir
Date of Receipt/Deposit

ir; :o7/ot/:iizzzlz:z

Amount

07/03/17

07/14/17

07/21/18

09/21/17

09/22/1-7- _

10/02/17 -

10/24/17Z„.

12/05/17'" ' ""

01/19/18--

02/09/18

02/22/18- -

03/01/18/
04/16/18"

05/02/1.6—

06/22/18 ■

06/27/18

J4'l.i"24

270.690

885

126,628

140.631

244,666

37,500

225,791

325,682

202.370

885

404.102

15,013

885

588,031

477,582
77.592

$ 3,280,057

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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i  I

PROGRAM SERVICE FEES

Net Clent Fees

Blue Crces«lue SNeU

MedcaU

Medcare

OSwr insurance

Otter Program Fees

LOCAlXOtlNTY GOVERNMEWT

Donatlcm/Conitlbuticns

DIv. torCKiiden. Youlti S Famdes

FEDERAL FUNDING

PATH

REHTM. INCOME

INTEREST INCOME

68H

Bureau Of Bdiavtoitai Heeen

Otter B8H

OTHER REVENUES

TOTAL PROGRAM REVENUES

The Mental Health Center of Greater Mandtester. inc.

and Mandtester Mental Hedtt Foundattcn. Inc

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUES

I  I For the Year Elided Junei 30.2019
!  t i l . '

-  1 1 i  M i IMuM. ri 4 Otter

Total - Total ) Total ChUdl Elderly 1 EiTiergencyl Vocational '  Non'- i Service. > '  ACT Crisis Community Supportive Mental Otter

Prrifirami Adol.- EMbles Udt KR.MlJnMJl Health Nort^BBH Prooertv

S  372J249 S

*

S ' 372.248 S  36.294 S  (39.619) 5  88.754 S  5.694 S  (51S49) s
I'

(200.346) S  7.090 S  403.874 %  8330 %  6315 5 S  104310 $

1.289,149 11.289.149 133.461 9.811 217346 • 379305 169.381; 31.456 347387 . - • •

' Z02SS86 12.025.566 289.525 60.762 308.726 - 471324 ,436.645 35.437 422.367 - - -

15.737J57 15.737.357 5.047S60 305.999 480.917 348.168 264.162 4.962391 2.129377 1314309 391339 521.888 3.019 46.496

1.290.168 •1.290.168 5.725 206.896 10.784 902 177.154 1 804.394 75.738 4.961 316 967 142 3189

559.429 ( 559.429 22.124 (5.114) 60.417 10.612 111.172 123.330 3352 234335 - 18 - (717)
19.704 19.704 351 (3251 7.773 . .1JW3 1.S20 101 8321 . 110 . .

21.293.941 21.293.641 5SM070 5.38.210 1.175.217 365S78 1354321 6317.415 2383.153 3636.554 401 185 5.31.299 3.1B1 152.780

461.611 461,811 157.703 (5,000) 309.106

3.540 ,-3.540 3.540
-

- • • - - -

40.121 40.121 . . 40.121 . . . . .

128.936 128.936 • • - - - 639 118367 - 9.830 497.119

26S67 26.587
-

• • • -

,

26387
•

1.6324136 1.632.030 3.1S2 440.684 .
. 450300 675.000 63300 . .

1.204.125 11.204.125 . • • 1304.125 • .

5.884,646 5.884.640 ! I.755S80 66.830 m.390' 151.784 •  24326 -1.169.648 621362 357.000 32.710 274.052 375 826.379 .

9.381,602 9.361.802 1.762S82 66.830 1.085.395 151,764 162.029 1.164,648 1.071.062 3236.904 32.710 382319 63.375 1.171.904 497.119

S 30.675,443 % S 30.675.443 S 7.297.652 S 605.040 S 2.260.612 S 517,160 S 1336350 $7,482,263 S 3.354315 S 4373.518 S 433305 $ 923318 S 66.536 $  1,324.664 $497,119

t  j

1

1

•j

See Independent Audior^ Repoa
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Th« htanM HMlBt CanMr el GrMMr UnhMtw. Inc.

STATEMENT OF'niNCnONAL EXPENSES
For tm Ymt Ended June 30.2018

CONSUMABLE SUPPUES

INSURANCE

MalpraelleeS Bonding

VaNdn

Comp PrepartyAJatSly

MEMBERSHP DUES

NTERESTEXPENSE
OTHER EXPENDITURES

TotN ExpOTdRuree

Arliiideflun AiouMlian

TOTAL PROGRAM

EXPENSES

SURPLUaOJEPICfT)

OAbe 251.887 92.1X 159.7OT 19.112 900 . 4.063 .4.723 13909 47.949 * 13236 29.104 116 5.751

BuUki^HoiMtaU 61.602 j 1.902 59.^ . ;  1 848 1 970 1 i 4.370 • il.304 464 6.829 !  .2-825 35.046 10 5.537

EducedoneVTrek^ 446.054 - 2412 443.842 •  26.248 ' 5.340"^ 1 6.050 > 12436 1.175 1 4,il I 53944 144,246 9  627 2.969

Food 73.759 2466 71.493 ,  784 1 •  16 •  151 ! '172 70 . ■  ; 2S9 { :-304 64779

i  '■ '4,680
MedlcM 77.871 32 77.^ 54 5 1 23- 1  ̂ 20- tS.4^

i ' ■
45.763 11

09w Censumeble Supple» 437467 75401 362.066 58.739 5.556 46.0881 19.018 22.483-- ■  :>5.041 ? : 55.235 52.359 5.311 14.450
Oepradatlon-EqutmMnl 258.665 ' 23813 234.852 * 43285 '  7.404 ■ •13541.: ;6426 13284 1  49.929 ; 33256 40.782 4.394 14.896

■« ^ »-«iIMpfVQBiDfVOUmip 167,609 9.016 158493 5420 5450 ' 8404 7.411 3138 6.642 14.823 43970 - 26768

EqulpmM MMnWwee 37.088 7483 29405 4.392 329 1499 .847 1.604 7.680 • 3,390 ' 5.881 256 1.844

AdrtWng 56436 4.914 51422 5.999 594 2426 771 3132 8.^. i| 5.007 404 1749

Pikilk^j 43789 11.970 31.799 6.005 303 1.963 539 4414 7.ro6 -1 2.349 4455 -  156 482

TMipheneContMifceauii 342.767 29486 313181 44,961 7473 21.653 13437 21.481 73957 ' 36.814 56.939 ,7492 19.806

fteMge & Shfetpkig 42.632 23449 19.183 2.733 219 2426 329 1.040 3892 ' 3002 5.102 172 532

TRANSPORTATION > 1.
Stafl 215.175 3829 212446 35.604 851 13768 15.371 504 39.^ 82.868 10.085 4413 3063

C8«>l> 6486 . 6.386 7 27
-

20 60 2404 3.768

703
595

33

1.757
1.111
6.820

97

147

122
3.218

63

180

21.191
912

48.223
897

2.452
16.021
6.444

147

1.286
17.870
3,105
6.750

773

6.336

29.760498
—5T3S5 r

29.760498 4.911.753 360.903 2.159486 673.665 1460.958 8.177.754 3.660.354 5468.487
T  51433 nSBiBS nB137 i \iA.m i 1—?537SB> I—J^75T> I—D553S1 i— T

567443
TO3I5J r

1.181429
isrm r

102425
■7353BI r

MM. OOmt

Tow Total Total 1 CMkV Elderty Emargoncy VocaBonai Non- SarAeal .ACT OWa Commaitty SuppoctNa Ltantai OOtat
UnN HeaWi Nc»4}MH

PERSONNEL COSTS > i  ;•
SMwir and WagM 5  19.701.960 $ 2.092.973 S  17.608.987' i 3.042.376 S  198,128 5 1.413045 1  363902 S 1.033.031 S 4.655.912 8 3148.627 S 2.932.744 5  356,054 S  585.606 S 43.689 5  635.673 1

Emptoye# Benelto 4.158411 471.068 3.687,443- 726.667 42.969 222750 82.843 92.029 1.030467 509.708 573483 86.190 162.448 9,683 138.986 -

1 479 114 143693 1780721 218417 14.704 101.463 27 011 76.839 348466 154.027 218782 26.158 42443 3.167 -50744 -

25289585 2 712 934 22476.651 3.987.780 255.621 1 736 758 473756 1201899 6 241.645 2.813.462 3.724.909 *01402 790497 56 739 824.603

PROFESSIONAL FEES

I
I

C8«d EvMuaaene/ServleM 332799 56.173 276726 (5792) 638 1.052 39.178 165.068 24*2 66736 - • 457 6427

AudKFeee 54.000 5.125 48475 3656 756 3.715 1.134 3132 13122 ■  6.912 7.020 594 1.836 216 1.782

LagNFeM 67476 6778 61798 13745 574 3675 3077 6400 19452- 8772 5406 428 1.322 164 1783

OOwPref. FeMlCenwBM 71776 13367 57.919 10,789 1714 4428 1.456 4.060 13324 7.481 6.933 609 1.883 270 5472 32.079

STAFF DEVELOPMENT
a TRAINING

JoumatNPubOcettone 3729 435 3294 693 19 .  ;(9) 260 32 594 1.705

Ifveerrlce TnMig (1.053) (1.053) • (5,000) 3407 440
- - -

ContarenceelCanvMdatM 60.794 19.887 40.907 7.215 514 1.978 ■ 429 1.424 13662 4.039 7.712 279 604 304 2.747
-

OOtar Stafl Oevetopmant 104.913 23702 81711 (1.329) *■ 13038 3.168 15,467 7.713 16.768 -
9.072 - 18.418 -

OCCUPANCY COSTS
Rar< 8.407 8,407 • - • - - •

lUiimgCeatt 7773 - 7773 - ■  - • 7773 - - •

OOtarUaSaa 227.805 8.920 216.885 (M) 6.387 24.190 8.864 (<9) 38.854 17.915 71421 43607 34*2 4.838 158.136
IttaMananeaS Rapafca 478.846 21.130 457416 13172 13C03 26400 13066 9.403 »7,10 , 37487 159.189 1.600 68.390 8.142 5.754 204.856
OBmt Ooeupaney CeaN 14.762 107 14.655' 40 74 126 •  825 8.005 160 5.062 *9 IS 16390*

196.025

184

56.017 5.316 50.701 8.980 794 3.854 1.176 3249 13613 7,170 7782 618 1.604 224 1.849 •

9.392 891 6.501 1406 131 846 197 545 '[2.283 ' ' 1.202 1,221 103 319 38' 310 •

141.090 13389 127.701 22.617 1,975 9.707 2.663 8.183 34.285 16,060 18.342 1452 4,797 564 4.658 -

37.787 3483 34.204 5.128 449 2700 672 1.855 17,921 4,09* 4,358 352 1,125 4.108 1.945 -

. . . - - • - 248.771
277.433 23,703 253730 40.545 3160 12490 4.761 13070 54.952 28.959 35.935 2.478 7,695 900 a.687

-

29.760496 3210440 26453058 4.372.890 320.757 1.934.951 592468 1.382.534 7784790 3270.457 4.689.60* 500.774 1.061.652 90785 > 1.059.196 1,001.958
-

(3210440) 3710440 538,963 40.146 224.935 81.097 178.424 693.464 389.697 576483 66.469 129.677 13440 767*5
•

1.135.441 1401458

"TB2Jr 1 iibim

See tndependem AudBoi'* Roporl
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
201S-2019

BOARD MEMBER TERM

Philp Hastings, Chmr^- ' - ^ ' ,2015-2021 ;

Kevin Shepp^d, Vice Ch'air ' ~ ' 2016-;2022

-Sheila McNeilrTreasurer— — -• "— ..—201-3-^201-9'—"

Thomas Lavoiej Secretary ■ - 2013-2019-

Jeff Eisenberg 2018-2024,

David Harrington 2017-2023

Michael Harrington. 2013:2019

Jaime Hoebeke 2015-202X '

Brent Kiley . —. - - 2017--2023-

Peter Kucharski, S^. . . 2017-2023:""

Tina Legere 2018-2024

Lizabeth MacDonald^ .. . 2016^2022.

Christina Mellor 2015-2021

Elaine Michaud • 2015 =,.2021

Theresa Rvan 2014--2020

Ron Schneebaum, MD 2018-2024

Andrew Seward 2016-2022

Richard Shannon 2016-2022

Shannon Sullivan 2014-2020

(Board members for DHHS/MCRT OUD/Admin Ex Sec)



William T. Rider

Objective To provide effective leadership in community mental healthcare

Experience The Mental Health'Center of Greater Manchester

401 Cypress St Manchester, NH 03103 (603) 668-4111

•  3/2015 to F*r^ent President, Chief Executive Officer

•  3/2000 to 3/2015: Exeojtive yP.,Chief Operating Officer

•  1/1995 to 2/2000: Director. Community Support Program
_ - - 7/1987 to'12/19^:;^sistant Oirector.Commun}ty .Support Program

•  6/1985 to 6/1987: Clinical .Case Manager

-£ i'- f T -

Carroll County Mental Heajth
25 West Main St. Conway NH^3818

•  4^8 to 5/85: Clinical Case Manager

New jHampshjre Hospital

24 Clinton St ..

Concord NH 03301

•  ' 10/76 to 4/78^:-Mental Health Counselor

Education 2001 to 2002 Franklih'Piefce College Concord, NH

•  12.Graduate Credits „

1972XQ 1.976 Canisius College Buffalo. NY

•  BA Psychology 1976 ̂

Community

Activity

Granite Pathways: Chair, Board of Directors

Postpartum Support Intemational-NH, Founders. Board

NAM! of NH Member since -1985

■ 2017 NH Business Excellence Award in the Large Non Profit Category

■  1992 NAMI Professional of the Year Award '



PATRICIA CARTY, MS, CCBT
Executive Vice President/Chief Operating Officer

DESCRIPTION

Works collabcratively with members of Senior Leadership Team and is an active participant in
planning and development. Attends meetings with the Board of Directors and contributes to
Board effort in governing The Center. Advises the President/CEO of opportunities and trends
within the environment that The Center operates, as well as analyzing the strengths and
weaknesses of Center programs and personnel. Understands and incorporates The Center's
mission, vision and Guiding Values and Principles-in all areas of performance. Positively
represents The Center y to all constituent groups; including regulatory agencies, media, general
public, staff, consumers and families. May be requested to take part in consultations, education
activities, speakers bureau, presentations, supervision of employees toward licensure, and will be
expected to take part in Quality Improvements activities.

^EDUCATION

•MS^ Springfield College, Manchester
"Community/Psychorogy ' '1994"

BA University of Vermont
Psychology ' 1985

EXPERIENCE

The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester . Manchester, NH

July 2015 to present .Executive Vice Prcsident/Chief^peratingOffcer-
2000 to July 2015 Director of Community Support SeiVices."
1996 - 2000 Assistant Director of Community Support Services
1990 - 1996 Assistant Coordinator, Restorative Partial Hospital
1987 - 1990 Counselor, Restorative Partial Hospitaf,
1986- 1987 Residential Specialist

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS, MEMBERSHIPS, LICENSES AND
CERTIFICATIONS - - - ' , -

•  Member - Psychopharmacology Research Group, Department of Psychiatry, Dartmouth Medical
School - 2003 to present

•  1998 Recipient of the Mental Illness Administrator of the Year Award by the National Alliance
for the Mentally 111

•  1998 American Psychiatric Association Gold. Award participant winner accepting on behalf of the
entire DBT treatment program

•  American Mental Health Counselor's Association (#999020788)
•  Certified Cognitive Behavioral Therapist (#12421)
•  National Association of Cognitive Behavioral Therapists

Y:\Adrrin Ex S«c\Moblle Crisis Services RFP2016\Tectinlca) PropossnSufl and RssumesVPatrida Carty Resume.docx



PATWCIA CARTY, MS, CCBT
Executive Vice President/Chief Operating Officer

PUBLICATIONS

The Trauma Recovery Group: A Cognitive-Behavioral Program for Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder in
Persons with Severe Mental Illness. Communitv Mental Health Journal. Vol. 43, No. 3, June
2007.

Co-authored Chapter 25 for text entitled Improving Mental Health Care: Commitment to Oualitv. Edited
by Scderer & Dickey, 2001.

Psychometric Evaluation of Trauma and Post-traumatic Stress Disorder Assessment in Persons with Severe
Mental Illness. Psvchologv AssessnTent. 2001. Vol. 13, No. 1, 110-117.

HTV Risk Factors Among People with Severe Mental Illness in Urban and Rural Areas. Psvchiatric
Services. April 1999.

Trauma and Post-traumatic Stress Disorder in Severe Mental Illness. Journal of Consulting and Clinical

Psvchologv. 1998. Vol. 49, No. 10,1338-1340.
Integrating Dialectical Behavior Therapy into a Community Mental Health Program. Psvchiatric Services.

October 1998. Vol. 49, No. 10,rl338-1340. .

Y:\A(]rT<n Ex SdcNMobiItt Crisis StrvlcM RFP 2016\Technicsl Proposal\S(sff and Rasumes\Patrtda Carty Rasuma.docx



PAUL J. MICHAUD

MSB, BS

Seasoned professional with 30 years of financial management, reporting, and leadership
experience, inclusive of general ledger oversight & reconciliations, month-end close, payroll,
A/P, A/R, budgeting I forecasting, variance analysis, product costing, revenue cycle
management, revenue enhancement, treasury I cash-flow forecasting, environmental &
operational analysis, staff supervision, H/R, workers comp. and insurance I risk administration,
regulatory and statutory reporting, external audits, strategic planning, policy development,
grants / funding management, technology implementation, EMR, compliance, and security.

1. . LEADERSIP POSITIONS -

Chief Financial Officer The Mental Health Center

Of Greater Manchester (NH) 2011 to present

Controller Associated Home Care, Inc. Beverly, MA 2009 to 2011

V'

Chief Financial Officer *1?^' • Seacoast VNA, North Hampton, NH ^ 1998 to 2009

'Manager, Public~Accounting' 6ei^, Dunii^ McHeil.5:*Paffker, CPA 1996 to 1998

Director, Budget & Cost / Controller BCBS of Maine, So. Portland, ME l993tol996

Key Accountabilities: Oversight of all accounting, financial reporting, transaction processing, budgets /
forecasts, A/R, A/P, G/L, payroll, I/T, product costing, profitability analysis, and vendor contracting.
Regular collaboration..wlh:Senior Management Team, Finance Committees, Board of.Directbrs, external
auditors, and federal / state regulators. Other responsibilities include: revenue cycle &.cash flow
management, ahalysis-arid'r^blution of forecast variances, management of billing, A/R 'andTbllectiohs,
banking, investor, lender reiatJbnships,'new business development, staff recruitment,'sup'ervigibn, training,
benefits / retirement plans administration, cost accounting, operational analyses, syst^s integration,
'development and maintenance of accounting and management information systems. Duties also include
assessing risk exposure &'insurance coverage, M & A evaluations and due diligence, grant applications,
and preparation'of corporate income tax schedules and support (Forms 990 and l I20")'*'-''" '

Significant Accomplishments - Post-Acute HeahhcarefacilitiesT"
Key member of EMR'jmplementation team (billing, A/R, Accounting, registration" functions)
Financial oversight during-peripd-of-j 00% revenue growth - '
Financial oversight during period of national Top 500 Agency Status ■

Financial oversight during period of 300% reduction in Days in A/R "
One-year oversight - due diligence process - Merger with $50 million entity . -

Audit / Consultin2 Manager
Berry, Dunn, McNeil & Parker, CPA's & Management Consultants 1996 to 1998
Provided consultation airid advisory services to hospitals, nursing homes, ALF's, and other healthcare
facilities (acute & post-acute) in areas of reimbursement, financial planning and reporting and systems
evaluations and integration. .Coordinated and supervised audit engagements, regulatory report
preparation, feasibility studies, due diligence, financial forecasts and projections, and operational and
compliance reviews. Assisted clients with regulatory licensing and certifications.



Paul J.Michaud

Page 2

Budget Director. Finance Division. Budget & Cost Department

Blue Cross & Blue Shield of Maine So. Portland, ME 1993 through 1996
Directed corporate administrative budgeting and forecasting process for Maine's largest managed care
organization. Determined, distributed, analyzed, and forecast aiinual operating expenses in excess of $70
million. Oversight responsibilities of administrative expense reimbursement for all federal and state
contracts. Supervised professional arid administrative staff. A/P. Payroll, G/L, financial & budget
variance reporting & analysis. Interim appointment as VP of Finance.

Significant Accomplishments:
Reorganized corporate budgeting and costing process, converting to electronic format vyhile enhancing

routine communications with department heads and improving variance reporting..
Restructured payroll and A/P functions resulting in operational and economic efficiencies.
Collaborated with senior management in major corporate reorganization to streamline operations and

reduce_administrative costs. Reduced administrative budget in excesS;Of-25%.
~Appbirited"to~cbrpbfare j6b evaluation and comperisation committee . ■.T-'ri,:'"'" , "

~AuditMimager: '•Medieare'Flscarintermediarv ~ _
. Blue Cross & Blue Shield of Maine So. Portland, ME '1985, through ,1993

Oversight responsibilities for Medicare cost report audit and reimbursement functions for hospital
complexes, home health care agencies, skilled nursing facilities, and other healthcare providers.
Interpreted and applied federal program laws, regulations and cost reporting instructions. Interacted with
provider officers and external consultants, CPA's and federal program officials. Staff supervision.

Accomplishments:
Planned-,_organized and implemented New England Regional Home Health'Agency audit department in

198^r^incli^ive of development of audit programs and policies, fraud-and abuse detection programs,
staff recfuitmerit and training, and all related administrative and management functions.

AdministeredWriual audit and provider service functions resulting in HCFA recognition of Blue Cross &
Blue Shield of Maine as one of the leading and most cost efficient audit intermediaries in the entire
country, based upon federal performance and quality standards. (1989 through 1995)

Staff Auditor -Public Accounting ' -r:-•
Planned and conducted audit examinations and prepared financial statemehts and'tax returns for clients
within the retail,' financial services, healthcare and manufacturing industries. '

Arthur Young & Company, Portland, Maine 1982 through 1983

EDUCATIONAL EXPERIENCE
Husson College, Bangor, Maine

Masters of Science in Business Administration (MSB - Accounting Concentration) 1990
Husson College, Bangor, Maine

Bachelor of Science in Accounting (BSA) 1980

TECHNICAL PROFICIENCIES
Microsoft Office Products - Excel, Word, Powerpoint, database management tools
Various accounting & patient billing programs ( Quantum, myAvatar, QuickBooks, MAS 90, MISYS, HAS,

CERNER )



CURRICULUM VITAE

MICHAEL D McNAMARA, DO, FACN
•  2 Wall Street, Suite 300

Manchester NH 03101

PROFESSIONAL LICENSURE AND CERTIFICATION

NH Medical License-#16646

Board Certification in Psychiatry r-Diplomat of the American College of
Osteopatiiic Neinologists and-PsycHiatiists"'l 997, Recertified'2007 2016^
Certificate - 0432.„ l.: ... .. •

DEA Certificate-FM4408729J

XM4408729
"3*

EDUCATION

College: St. Michael's Cbllegej.'Winooski, Vermont, B.A., 1981 — —- :

Medical School: University of New England College of Osteopathic Medicine, ^
Biddeford, Maine, D.6., 1988

lntemship:.Michigah He^th Center, Detroit, Michigan, 1989

Psychiatric Residency: Adult Mental Health Hospital, Woodward Avenue, Detroit,
Michigan, July 1989-June 1992 - ^

EDUCATIONAL CONFEMNCES

Certified by the American QstebpatWc Association for completion of at least 150 CME
Credit hours for the following three-year cycles: 1992-1994,1995-1997,1998-2000,
2001-2004,2005-2007. 2007-2010.2011-2013,

Curriculum Vitae " Page 1
Michael Daniel McNamara, DO.



PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS

American Osteopathic Association

American College of Osteopathic Neurologists and Psychiatrists
-Elected as Fellow 2009

New Hampshire Osteopathic Association

American-Psychiatric Association - • -»

. American Osteopathic Academy of Addiction Medicine
POSITIONS

Medical Director Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester NH- (Present- 2017).
Psychiatrist for Mental,Health Center of Greater Manchester NH 2014-prescnt (2017)

Full member, Medical staff -Catholic Medical Center-i Manchester NH 2014—present
■  ̂ C2Q17f- ^ ---- ^ —

• Full member, Medical staff-ElHot Hospital, Manchester NH- 2014-present (2017)

Chief of Psychiatry, North Country Hospital, Newport, Vermont 1992- (2008)

" Medical Director for the mental health outpatient clinic operated by NorOi Country
, Hospital. Northern-Vermont Counseling and Psvchiatric.Services. 1992^(^20131..

Medical provider for'Siiboxone outpatient clinic at North Country Hospital. ' ^ '
•(2007-2013)- —: ̂

• Clinical Assistant Professor, Dept of Family Medicine,- UVM College of
Medicine(2005-2012) ^ • -

Past- President Vermont'State Association of Osteopathic Physici^ & Surgeons
- (VSAOPS)-2003-2005--: ' ~ ;■

* President, North Country Hospital Medical Staff (2006-7)

Trustee member, North Country Hospital Board of Trustees (2006 & 2007)

Board Member- American Osteopathic Board of Neurology & Psychia^ ,
,2009: (June 2015)

Co-Chair American College Board of Neurology & Psychiatry-2014- June 2015

Curriculum Vitae Page 2
Michael D. McNamara, DO



Co-Chair American College Board of Neurology & Psychiatry-2014- June 2015

Board Examiner for American College Board of Neurology & Psychiatry,
Part n Oral Psychiatric Exams, Cherry HiU NJ, 2005,2006', 2007, 2008,2009,
2010,2011,2012313,2014,2015,2016

Program Chair (VSAOPS) for flnmifll Vermont State CME conference at Stowe, Vermont
2002^& 2003

Board Officer VSAOPS 1998-2005

Member of Medical Staff, North Country Hospital Medical Staff 1992- (2013)

Officer.Medical staff executive committee North Country Hospital 2.002-2007

Chairman of the Ethics Committee at North Cotmtiy Hospital 1993-1996

Member of the North Country Hospital Ethics Committee 1992- (2013)

Member of Pharmaceutical, Therapeutic and Treatment Medical Staff Conimittee at
North Country Hospital, 1992- 2008

Psychiatric Consultant to Northeast Kingdom Communit>LAction Alcohol and Drug
Rehabilitation Program, 1995-1997

Vermont Member of the House Delegates of the American Osteopathic Association
Chicago, lUinois July 2003,2004, 2005,2006, 2007, 2008,-2009,2010,2011,2012,2013

Ct:rNlCAl:INTERSTS " 7—x: — -
r'

Psychophaimacology, Mood/ Anxiety Disorders, Consult Liaison Psychiatry,
Geriatric Psychiatry, Addiction Medicine

REFERENCES on request.

Curriculum Vitae Page 3
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER OF GREATER MANCHESTER

NAME OF PROGRAM: MOBILE CRISIS SERVICES AND SUPPORTS
BUDGET PERIOD: SFV: 2020

KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

WILLIAM RIDER PRESIDENT/CEO $160,050 3.75% $6,001.88

PATRICIA CARTV EXECUTIVE VP / COO $114,446 8.00% $9,155.68

PAULMICHAUD VP of FINANCE/CFO $127,556 2.75% $3,507.79

MICHAEL

McNAMARA

VP/CHIEF MEDICAL

OFFICER

$187,416 2.00% $3,748.32

TOTAL SALARIES $22,413.67



Je£Crey A. Meyers
Commissioiier

Ketja S. Fox
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-6738 1-800-8D4-0909

Fox: 603-271-6106 TDD Access: 1-800-736-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

June 1, 2018

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301 \

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral
Health, Bureau of Mental Health Services to exercise a renewal option to an existing
agreement with The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, Inc. (Vendor # 177184), 401
Cypress Street, Manchester, NH 03103-3628, by increasing the price limitation by $1,345,249
from $2,657,300 to $4,002,549 and by extending the contract completion date from June 30,
2018 to June 30, 2019, upon Govemor and Executive Council approval. Governor and
Executive Council approved the original agreement on June 15, 2016 (Item #8). 100%
General Funds.

Funds to support this request are available in the following account in State Fiscal Year
2019, with the ability to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget
Office without further Governor and Executive, Council approval if needed and justified.

05-095-092-920010-59450000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SVCS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, DIV OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH,
CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Object Title
Current

Amount

Increase

Amount
Revised

Amount

2017 102-502664

Contracts for

Program
Services

$1,312,051 $0 $1,312,051

2018 102-502664

Contracts for

Program
Services

$1,345,249 $0 $1,345,249

Subtotal $2,657,300 $0 $2,657,300

05-095-092-922010-41170000 HEATLH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF. BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH
SERVICES, CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT



HI& Excellent. Oovernor ChriUopner T. Sununu
and the HsnoraUc Counci
P«te2of3

State

Fiscal

Year

CfassfObject Title
Current

Amount

Increase

Amount
Revised

Amount

2019 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

$0 S1.345.249 $1,345,249

Subtotal $0 $1,345,249 $4,002,549

Total $2,657,300 $1,345,249 $4,002,549

EXPLANATION

This request is for a one-year renewal of a current contract for Mobile Crisis Services
and Supports to Individuals 18 years or older who are experiencing a mental health crisis,
including those with a co-occurring substance use disorders, in the New Hampshire
Community Mental Health Region VII, which includes Manchester, Auburn. Bedford, Candia.
Goffstown. Hooksett, Londonderry and New Boston.

The Division fo^r Behavioral Heallh is New Hampshire's single slate mental health
authority. The Division for Behavioral Health seeks to promote full community incluBion for
adults (18 years or older) who have severe mental filness, severe and persistent mental illness
or who are severely mentally disabled. The State places a high emphasis on supporting
individuals in their community v;ith a broad range of supports and services that reduce the
need for Inpatient care.

As part of New Hampshire's implementation of the Community Mental Health
Agreement (Amanda D. Settlement), the Division for Behavioral Health has implemented the
Mobile Crisis Services and Supports contract for the provision of hvo (2), two-bedroom,
community crisis apartments, a mobile crisis team and timely accessible services and supports
to individuals 18 years and older experiencing a.mental health crisis in NH Community Mental
Health Region VII.

The contractor will continue to provide services that provide crisis stabilization and case
management services. The contractor will continue to provide a central phone triage system,
v;here trained clinicians complete an initial risk assessment to decide the type of services
and/or supports the individual may need as v/ell as two (2), two-bedroom, mobile criste
apartments which can be an alternative to hospitalization and/or instltutlonallzation.

The contractor will continue to collaborate and coordinate with law enforcement
personnel to respond to individuals In a mental health crisis when law enforcement is involved.
Additionally, the contractor will have the ability to respond to requests for crisis assessments
and interventions within one (1) hour of receiving calls for mobilization of services. Once the
contractor is involved with a case, services and supports can be provided for up to seven (7)
days following the onset of the crisis to ensure Individuals remain stable and in the community.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

This contract was competitively bid. The Department published a Request for
Proposals on December 7, 2015 to solicit proposals from vendors to provide Mobile Crisis
Services and Supports, In the New Hampshire Community Mental Health Region VII, to
individuals 18 years or older who are experiencing a mental health crisis, including those with
a co-occurring substance use disorder. The request for proposals was available on the
Department of Health and Human Services website from December 7, 2015 through January
29. 2016. Two proposals were received.

The attached renewal is for the provision of services for one (1) year, which will exercise
one (1) year of the two (2) years of renewals available through this contract. This location will
be re-procured after this renewal.

Should Governor and Executive Council not approve this contract, the State of New
Hampshire would be in violation of the Community Mental Health Agreement in relation to the
lavifsuit of Amanda D. vs. Governor Hassan, and individuals experiencing a mental health crisis
could be placed in hospitals or long term facilities which could result in higher costs to the
State.

Area Served: Community Mental Health Region VII (Manchester, Auburn, Bedford,
Candia, Goffstown, Hooksett, Londonderry and New Boston)

Source of Funds: 100% General Funds

Respectfully submitted.

Katja S. Fox
Director

Approved by:
Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services'Mission is to join communities andfamUiea
m providing opportunities for citisens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mobile Crisis Services and Support, Manchester and Surrounding Towns

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the

Mobile Crisis Services and Supports, Manchester and Surrounding Towns

This 1®* Amendment to the Mobile Crisis Services and Supports, Manchester and Surrounding Towns
contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment One") dated this 31st day of May, 2018, is by and
between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred
to as the "State" or "Department") and The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester, inc.
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a corporation with a place of business at 401 Cypress
Street, Manchester, NH 03103-3628.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 15, 2016, Item# 8, the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified In the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18, (and Exhibit C-l, Revisions to
General Provisions Paragraph 4) the State may modify the term of the contract upon written agreement
of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to exercise one (1) year of the two-year extension term allowed under the
agreement to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2019.

2. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read: $4,002,549.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Bjpck 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

E. Maria Reinemann, Esq.. Director of Contracts and Procurement.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9330.

5. This agreement is further amended by adding Exhibit K "DHHS INFORMATION SECURITY
REQUIREMENTS".

The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester Amendment #1
RFP#17-DHHS-OCBCS-BBH-O1 Page 1 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mobile Crisis Services and Support, Manchester and Surrounding Towns

6. This agreement is further amended by adding 2.8.1 "Ensure that all collaboration and
coordination with law enforcement personnel follows the requirements of 45 CFR 164.512 or is
with the consent of the individual as required by applicable state rule, and state and federal law.

7. This agreement is further amended by striking the period after "requirements" and adding "and
the requirements of 42 CFR Part 2 requirements."

8. This agreement is further amended by adding "5.1.1 The Contractor shall comply with all of the
requirements of 42 CFR Part 2 relating to safeguarding substance use disorder infomnation as if
applicable.

9. This agreement is further amended by adding "5.2.1. The Contractor shall comply with all the
requirements of "Rights of individuals Receiving Mental Health Services in the Communit/ He-M

. 309, if applicable.

Remainder of page intenVonaily left blank.

The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester Amendment #1

RFP #17-DHHS-OCBCS-BBH-01 Page 2 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mobile Crisis Services and Support, Manchester and Surrounding Towns

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date Katja S. Fox
Director, NH DHHS Division for Behavioral Health

COf^RACTOR NAME

The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester

Hlzillb
Date Name: William Rider

Title. President/Chief ExecutiverOfficer

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of c. County of ti/ /fs^o on j/^7//9^ . before the undersigned officer,
personally appeared the person identi^ed directly abdve, or satisfa6torily/proven to be the person vwhose name Is
signed above, and acknc^edged that s/he executed this document In the capacity indicated above.

nature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Name and Title of Notarv or Justice ̂ the Peace

My Com'rhisslon Expires:

The Mentat Heailh Center of Greater Manchester Amendment #1

RFP 017.OHHS-OCBCS-BBH-O1 Page 3 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mobile Crisis Services and Support, Manchester and Surrounding Towns

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office. Is approved as to form, substance, and execution.

OFFICE OFTHE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date F-Name:

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of the State
of New Hampshire at tfve Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFRCE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

TiUe:

The Menial Health Center of Greater Manchester
RFP «17-DHHS-DCBCS-BBH-01

Amendment #1

Page 4 of4
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New Hampshire Department of .Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally Identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incldenf shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" In section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61. Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal Information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personalty Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This Information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User' means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data In accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incidenf means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which Includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or Its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, al] of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means Information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an Individuars identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined In New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or Identifying information which is linked
or iinkat)le to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided In the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information al 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12 "Unsecured Protected Health Infbnmatlon" means Protected Health Information that Is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that Is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSiBILITlES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all Its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

Security Requirements Lili-flii
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI In violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated In this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of Inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption, if End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data tietween applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the Internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. Eixl User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrvoted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information,

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mall Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypt^ and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-fblders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or pennitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HlTECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive Inlrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures Its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer In the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
In accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitlzation, or othenvise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitlzation, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify In writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will Include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless othenAilse specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

iV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

j

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the sen/ices for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an Internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

I

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and Is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States uniess
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Swurily Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

the breach, Including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Infomiation, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https:/Awww.nh.gov/doitArendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement Information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer, and
additional email addresses provided in this section, of any security breach within two
(2) hours of the time that the Contractor learns of its occurrence. This includes a
confidential information breach, computer security incident, or suspected breach
which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

e. limit disclosure of the Confrdential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in alt cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances ConfEdential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third patty application.

Contractor Is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer, Information Security Office and
Program Manager of any Security Incidents and Breaches within two (2) hours of the
time that the Contractor learns of their occurrence.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and In accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractpris procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;.

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is Involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required In this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Inddents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and. if so. Identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as welJ as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, In accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange Issues:

DHHSInformationSecurityOfTice@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS contacts for Privacy issues:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

C. DHHS contact for Information Security Issues:

DHHSInformationSecurityOfflce@dhhs.nh.gov

D. DHHS contact for Breach notifications:

DHHSInformationSecurityOfrice@dhhs.nh.gov

DHHSPrivacy.Ofricer@dhhs.nh.gov

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initials,
DHHS tnfonnation

Security Requirements
Page Oof 9 Date.



Resume

\

Richard Cornell MSW, ACSW, UCSW

Vice President of Community Relations
The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester

401 Cypress Street

Manchester, NH 03103

603-206-8547

WORK EXPERIENCE - P/ease note that! have worked for the MHCGM since 1973.

July 2014 to Present -

Vice President of Community Relations for the Mental Health
Center of Greater Manchester. Responsible for overseeing all Community and
Development Projects as well as Community Education & Strategic Resources.

2000 to July 2014-

Director of Bedford Counseling Associates. Responsible for all clinical decisions
made by the staff in our Manchester and Deny office settings. Supervised the
decisions made by the scheduling department. Monitored the use of funding

source monies. Worked with other departments to assure open communication
and that client needs were met (member of CSV, Management and Marketing
Teams). Supervised new staff and students. Maintained a fuihtlme case load.
F^rformed community presentations as heeded. Resolved any client conflicts in
the delivery o f their services.

1999 to 2000-

Coordinator of Bedford Counseling Associates. FuH-time therapist. Supervised
intake coordination and emergency services related to this program.

1986 to 1999-

Child and Adolescent Therapist. Responsible for community outreach with local
schools, hospitals and primary care offices. Performed presentations for local
businesses when needed.

1980 to 1986-

Child Therapist. Worked with families and community programs.

1981 to 1984-

Volunteer Coordinator& Vocational Development. Worked with the Director



of Community Development to expend e highly successful volunteer
program for the center. We also worked to create a supportive employment
program (Options) for the center. During this time additionally carried a full
clinical caseload.

1978 to 1980-

Adult Out-Patient Therapist, Caseload was mixed with Emergency

Services and the Adult Out-Patient Department.

1976 to 1980- .

Emergency Services Clinician. Responsi)le lor crisisintervention training. Performed
psychiatricassessments. Took on-caU duties In office and out in the community.

Worked with Emergency Room Departments, Police and many community
agencies.

1973 to 1975-

Mental Health Worker. Therapist on the night and evening shifts of the center's
in-patient unit.

EDUCATION

1987-

MSW with a concentration in youth and group work. Boston
University, School of Social Work

1981-

BSh Human Services, New Hampshire College

LICENSURE/MEMBERSHIPS

❖ LICSW-Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker, NH # 457
❖ ACSW-Academy of Certified Social Workers since 1990
❖ NASW-National Association OfSocial Workers since 1984

QUAUFICATIONS

❖ Demonstration of stror^g leadership

skills

<r Sound background of clinical

practice

•> History of positive supervisory

skills

<• Lengthy public speaking
experience

(Referertces available upon request)
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301
903-27 L-6736 1-800-804-0909

Fax: 603-271-6105 TDD Aeoeas: 1-600-735-2964 wirw.dhhajih.Kov

May 24. 2015

Her Excellency. Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Councti

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301 r,

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human ̂Services, Bureau of Mental Health
Services, Division of Behavioral Health to enter into a contract with The Mental Health Center
of Greater Manchester, Inc. (Vendor # 177184), 401 Cypress Street, Manchester, NH 03103-
3628, for the provision of Mobile Crisis Services and Supports, in an amount not to exceed
$2,657,300, effective July 1, 2016 or date of Governor and Executive Council approval,
whichever is later, through June 30, 2018. 100% General Funds.

;  . Fujjds to support this request are available in the follovirtng account in State Rscal Year
2017, irvi are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2018, upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the ability to adjust
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office without further Governor
and Executive Council approval if needed and justified.

05-095-092.920010-59450000-102-502664-92204000 HEATLH AND SOCIAL SERVICES.
DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF. DIV OF
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT

EXPLANATION '

This request is for the provision of Mobile Crisis Services and Supports to individuals 18
years or older who are experiencing a mental health crisis, including those with a co-occurring
substance use disorders, in .the New Hampshire Community Mental Health Region VII, which
includes Manchester, Auburn, Bedford. Candia, Goffstown. Hooksett, Londonderry arid New
Boston.

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Object Title Activity Code Amount

2017 102-502664
Contracts for

Program Services
92204000 $1,312,051

2018, 102-502664
Contracts for

Program Services
92204000 $1,345,249

Total $2,657,300



Her Excellency. Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorabla Council
Page 2 of 3

The" Division of Behavioral Health is New Hampshire's single state mental health
authority. The Division of Behavioral Health seeks to promote full community inclusion for
adults (18 years or older) having severe mental illness, severe and persistent mental illness or
who are severely mentally disabled. The State places a high emphasis on supporting
individuals in their community with a broad range of supports and sen/ices that reduce the
need for inpatient care.

As part of New Hampshire's implementation of the Community Mental Health
Agreement (Amanda D. Settlement), the Division of Behayioral Health is implementing the
Mobile Crisis Services and Supports contract for the provisiorf of two (2), two-bedroom,
community crisis apartments, a mobile crisis team and timely accessible services.apd,
supports, to individuals, 18 years and older experiencing a mental health crisis, in NH
Community Mental Health Region Vll.

The vendor will implement a mobile crisis team, which will provide crisis stabilization
and case management services. The vendor will provide a central phone triage system, where
trained clinicians wilt complete the initial risk, assessment to decide the type of sen/ices and/or
supports the individual may need as well as two (2), two-bedroom, mobile crisis apartments,
which will be an alternative to hospitalization and/or institutionalization.

The vendor will collaborate and coordinate with law enforcement .personnel to respond
to individuals in .mental' health crisis when law enforcement is involved. Additionally, the
vendor will have the ability to respond to requests for crisis, assessments and interventions
within one (1) hour of receiving calls for mobilization of services. Ortce the vendor Is involved
with a case, services and supports will be provide for up to seven (7) days following the onset
of the crisis to ensure individuals remain stable.

This contract was competitively bid. The Department published a Request for
Proposals on December 7 2015 to solicit proposals-from-vendors-to-provide-Mobile-Crlsis-
Services and Supports, in the New Hampshire Community Mental Health Region VII, to
individuals 18 years or older who are experiencing a mental health crisis, including those with
a co-occurring substance use disorder. The request for proposals was available on the
Department of Health and Human Services website from December 7, 2015 through January .
29,2016. Two proposals were received-:

The proposals were evaluated by a team of Department of Health and Human Services
employees with knowledge of the program requirements based on the criteria published In the
Request for Proposals. The Department requested the vendor with the highest scoring
proposal to reduce their budgets to be within the range of funding available to the Department.
The vendor was not able to meet the Department's request. Therefore, the Department
entered into contract negotiations with the second bidder who met the criteria requirements
and was awarded the contract. The bid summary is attached.

The attached contract is for the provision of services for two (2) years, with the option to
renew services for up to two (2) additional years, subject to continued availability of funds,
satisfactory performance of seri/ices, and approval by the Governor and Executive Council.



Her Excellency. Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
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Should Governor and Executive Council not approve this contract, the State of New
Hampshire would be in violation of the Community Mental Health Agreement in relation to the
lawsuit of Amanda D. vs. Governor Hassan, and individuals experiencing a mental health crisis
could be placed in hospitals or long term facilities which could result in higher costs to the
State.

Area Sen/ed: Community Mental Health Region VII (Manchester, Auburn. Bedford,
Candia, Goffstown. Hooksett, Londonderry and New Boston)

Source of Funds: 100% General Funds

Respectfully submitted.

^ F7<-
Katja S. Fox
Director

Approved by\
Frey A. M^ers

Commissioner

Tbe Department oCHealth and Human Services'Miaaion is to Join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Dopartment of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations

Contracts & Procurement Unit

Summary Scoring Sheet

Mobile Crtsli Services and Supports

Manchester and Surrounding Teems

RFP NaaM

Bidder Name

Mantal Haalth Centar of Graater Mancheatar

^ Resourcos for Human Development

.DHHS-OCBCS-aBH^I

RFP Number Reviewer Nsmes

1.
Jule Lane • Program SpeciaBsi 10

imamr

Pelnts

AClUll

Points

200 103

200 t»4

Kristi Trudel. Program Plartning & Raview SpeciaiisI

3.
Thomas Grinley, Program Ranrw I

Albert Uallab. Jr. Program Plarmar and Rwlow SpeciaiisI

5- PhUp J NKleau. Jr. AMnlstrstor l»

Ann OrttcoO. Admtnlltratcr III

7.
Peler Raid. Adminblrater lU



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/IS)

Subject: Mobile Crisis Services & SuDDom

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for <q?proval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

agreement

The Slate of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 State Agency Name
Department of Health &. Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1.3 Contractor Name

The Mental Health Center of Greater Marfchcsier, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

401 Cypress Street
Manchester, NH 03103-3628

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)206-8552

1.6 Account Number

05-095-092-920010-59450000-

102-502664-92204000

1.7 Completion Date

June 30,2018

.1.8 Price Limitation

$2,657,300

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Eric D. Borrin, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
(603) 271-9558

1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

William Rider, President/Chief Executive
Officer

1.13 Acknowledgement: State of .County of-

On e^O/^ .before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, orsatisfectorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, arid acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.
1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

ISeall

1.13.2 Name and TltlaofNoiary or Justice of the Peace ^ . -k. i.n^
^ ̂  JOANNE C.DUCtJOS, Notary Public

MyCommbatooExplresSeptBmbArjg^jf

I.I4 State Agency Signature

'  l"*"^ Date; / U

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

1.16 Approval by th^N.H. Department of Administratioi/, Division of Personnel (ifapplicable)

By: Director, On;

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substa

fl.N

ince and Execution) (ifapplicable)

5jnL
1.16 Approval the Govenpr^d Execu||vc Counc lYfappliilable) 1 / j

On;
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTORySERVlCES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identlHed in block 1.1 (*^tate"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (''Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services")-

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreemeiu to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
he^nder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the s6le risk of the
Contraaor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effecUvc, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
.the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT,

' Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder. are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the Stale be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.R RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpecied.circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech,'can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 O'Equa!
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hainpshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to

'-ofzhe

appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
pr^ent until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice ofsuch termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account arc reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
E^IBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The ̂ te
shall have no liability to the Contraaor other than the contract
price.

Page

Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at Its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, wd shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

12 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and ̂ 11 not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Service.^ to hire, any person who is a Slate
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, admbistraiion or performance of this

2of4
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereundcr

("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions;
8.2.1 give the Contractor a vrritten notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days ̂ m the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Defeult and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractm* any damages the Stale suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITV/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of. this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, ,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the Slate, and
shall be returped to the State upon demand or upon
tenninatlon of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 9 UA or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion ofthe
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report Cn"ermination ̂ port") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The fonn, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this A^ement the Contractor is in ail
respects an independent contractor, and b neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind (he State or receive any benefits, workers* compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor.vrithout the prior written
notice and consent of the Stale.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
tndemnily and hold harmless the State, its officen wd
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, ib officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officen
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting fVom, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity ofthe State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in para^ph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the fc^Iowing
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability Insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or propeny damage, in amounts
of not less than S1 .OOO.OOOper occun-ence and S2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the

• State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State ofNew
Hampshire.

of 4

Contractor Initials

Dat<



14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identifled in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificatefs) of
insurance for all renewalfs) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certif)cate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
Insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior wrinen
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
-or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
("Workers' Compensation
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assign^ to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers* Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shaft
furnish the Contracting O^icer identified in block 1.9. or his
' or her successor, proof ofWorkers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable renewalfs) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The Slate shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Deftiult shall
bo deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Defoult shall be deemed a
waiver of the ri^t of the Stale to enforce each and all of Ihe
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mall, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to Ihe panics at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 arid 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an Instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State,of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

,1?^ CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
Thts Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
Intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not Intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confitr any such benefit

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provbions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. Inlhe event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are. held by a court of competent JurlsdicUon to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and-
effecL

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes ̂ e entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Page 4 of 4
Contractor Initials

Date, Idik



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mobile Crisis Services and Supports

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. the Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons WKh limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of
the contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact
on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to
achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. Thie Contractor shall provide Mobile Crisis Services and supports in the New
Hampshire Community Mental Health Region VII (Manchester, Auburn.
Bedford, Candia, Goffslown, Hooksett, Londonderry, New Boston), to
individuals eighteen (18) years and older who are experiencing a mental
health crisis.

2. Services to Be Provided

2.1.. The Contractor shall establish a mobile crisis team (MCT) that includes, but is
not limited to:

2.1.1. Master's level trained clinicians.

2.1.2. One (1) peer specialist.

2.1.3. One (1) on-call psychlatrist/APRN.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide coverage when there are multiple concurrent
crises, which may include both in-person and by telephone, by ensuring
resources are scheduled to meet the community's fluctuating needs for mobile
mental health crisis response. The Contractor shall ensure staffing includes,
but is not limited to:

2.2.1. Skilled ■ masters prepared clinicians, including full-time and per diem
staff, scheduled to ensure 24/7 coverage.

2.2.2. Experienced peer support specialists scheduled per diem 24/7 to
ensure on-demarid availability to clinicians mobilized in crisis
responses.

2.2.3. 24/7 schedule of masters prepared clinicians and peer support
specialists who function as 'back-ups' for the regulady scheduled
clinicians, as needed.

2.2.4. Th^ MCT Coordinator and/or Director shall be available to assume the
role of the masters level cliriicians, as necessary.

The Mentat Health Center of Greater Mancheslar ExhibitA Contrador Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mobile Crisis Services and Supports

'  Exhibit A

2.2.5. Tertiary 'back-up' staff skilled and versed in MCT employed in other
roles within the agency during regular business hours that elect to be
available per diem, as necessary.

2.2.6. 24/7 access to additional support from on-call psychiatrisVAPRN and
MCT supervisory staff and administrator-on-call, as needed for
consultation, mental health crisis management/treatment planning,
implementation and resolution of any issues/concerns that arise.

■ 2,3. The Contractor shall provide services that include, but are not limited to;

2.3.1. Telephone triages, which include but are not limited to initial telephone
calls completed by the clinician to complete the initial risk assessments
to determine the level of service that \mII be provided to the caller.

2.3.2. Telephone coaching provided by a Master's level clinical and/or
certified peer specialist in order to provide supportive listening,
program solving and referrals, as appropriate.

2.3.3. Lethality assessments that are completed by a Master's level dinical
during an intensive face-to-face assessment which includes, but is not
limited to:

2.3.3.1. Obtaining the individual's history, including but not limited to,
identifying problems in narrative form of how and why the
person is presenting at this time.

2.3.3.2. Listing immediate safety concerns frpm the point of view of the
individual in crisis, referring parties and other collateral
sources.

2.3.3.3. Listing of available crisis precipitants, internal and external
supports.

2.3.3.4. Listing of relevant past symptoms, treatments, and medical &
substance co-morbidities.

2.3.3.5. Narrative of current functional status.

2.3.3.6. Narrative of current mental status exam with serial

assessment over time and in response to imrhediate treatment
Interventions.

2-3.3.7. Creating a disposition/crisis plan.

2.3.4. Crisis stabilization sen/ices that may include, but are not limited to:

2.3.4.1. Ongoing lethality assessments.

2.3.4.2. Case management/connections to community based services.

2.3.4.3. Therapeutic services based on best practices and evidence
informed approaches.

The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester Extitr'rt A Contractor Initials

Page 2 of 9 Datacjyf/,
u



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mobile Crisis Services and Supports

Exhibit A

2.3.4.4. Supports that emphasizes psycho-education, empowerment,
partnership and the right to self-determination for Individuals

- challenged by mental illness and recovery.

2.3.4.5. Admissions to a" Crisis Stabilization Apartment that provides
brief and continuous psychiatric intervention in a community
based environment structured to maximize respite and support
while minimizing the need for inpatient hospitalization. The
Contractor shall ensure;

2.3.4.5.1. Two (2) apartments are available with a total of four
(4) beds.

2.3.4.5.2. Ongoing safety assessments are conducted.

2.3.4.5.3. Supen/ision and serial evaluation of mental status
are continuous.

2.3.4.5.4. A focus on individual coping strengths in order to
develop a recovery plan.

2.3.4.5.5. Medication evaluations are conducted.

2.3.4.5.6. Individual supportive therapy is available.

2.3.4.5.7. Referrals for psychiatric, social sen/ices, substance
use and medical aftercare are coordinated.

2.3.5. Peer specialist support sen/ices provided by peer support specialists
who Will provide services in a synergistic fashion with strong
partnerships among menibers of the crisis team in order to offer:

2.3.5.1. Specialized recovery promoting activities.

2.3.5.2. Supportive counseling.

2.3.5.3. Supportive listening.

2.3.5.4. Identification of potential community based resources
available to individuals.

2.3.5.5. Practical problem solving around life stressors.

2.3.6. Emergency psychopharmacology interventions provided within twenty-
four (24) hours of the crisis response by a full time nurse practitioner or
on-call psychiatrist in coordination with primary prescribers, as
appropriate.

2.3.7. Case management sen/ices that include expedited referrals and
linkages to community based sen/ices through partnerships in a
behaviorally integrated manner.

2.4. The Contractor shall provide a designated Mobile Crisis telephone number that
shall be answered and triaged by a Master's level clinician, twenty-four (24)

The MeAtalHeaRh Center of Greater Manchester Exhibit A Contractor Inibals

Pa^e 3 of 9 Dale^ klU



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mobile Crisis Services and Supports

Exhibit A

hours per day, (7) seven days per week in order to gather information to
determine:

2.4.1. The level and nature of the crisis, which shall be categorized as either:

2.4.1.1. Low, In which case the Contractor shall provide telephone
support and referrals.

2.4.1.2. Medium, in which case the Contractor shall provide a*..CHSis
stabilization appointment if no safety issues are of immediate
concern but the individual must be connected to services or

other crisis stabilization levels of service.

2.4.1.3. High, in which case the Contractor shall ensure an immediate
response:

2.4.1.3.1. To the individual's residence or other natural
environment.

2.4.1:3.2. At a neutral community location if the current
environment is dangerous or unsafe.

2.4.1.3.3. In an outpatient mental health setting.

2.4.1.3.4. With police/EMT at one of the locations identified in
Section 2.3.1.3.1 through 2.3.1.3.4, if there are
immediate safety issues.

2.4.2. The safest intervention, either by telephone or face-to-face, by. using
the Violence and Suicide Assessment (VASA) and/or the Crisis Triage
Scale (CTRS), and the algorithms available in the tools.

2.4.3. An individual safety plan for the individual by providir^ self-soothing
techniques until the Mobile Crisis team member arrives in person.

—2:5:—THe"Conlractor shall promptly assess Individual needs and identify necessary
services arxl supports to meet individual needs, as well as assist the individual
with accessing services and supports, either In-person or by telephone, in a
timely manner.

2.6. The Contractor shall respond to requests for crisis assessments and
interventions within one (1) hour of receiving the call for mobilization, as
recorded for Quality Assurance (OA) purposes in order to provide interventions
to avoid unnecessary hospitalization, incarceration, or admission to a
Designated Receiving Facility, Acute Psychiatric Residential Treatment
Program, emergency room, or nursing home, which shall include, but not be
limited to:

2.6.1. 24 hour live answer of the Mobile Crisis Team line.

2.6.2. A client centered approach.

2.6.3. Peer specialist supports.

2.6.4. Treatment plans;

Tha Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester ExhibilA Contractor Initials ——
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New Harnpshlre Department of Health and Human Services
Mobile. Crisis.Sejryices and Supports

Exhibit A.

2.6.5. Cognitive restructuring.

2.6.6. Practical.problem solving skills.

2.6.7. Coping skills education.

2.6.8. Substance use disorder treatment services.

2.6.9. Trauma informed care.

2.6.10. Linkage and mobilization of support systems.

2.6.11. Transportation to services, including support services.

2.7. The Contractor shall work to stabilize Individuals as quickly as practical and
assist them with returning to their pre-crisis level of functioning.

2.8. The Contractor shall collaborate and coordinate with law enforcement

personnel to respond to individuals in mental health crisis in situations that
Involve law enforcement. The Contractor shall:

2.8.1. Initiate meetings with regional police departments to educate them
about the services offered by and access to the Mobile Crisis Team.

2.9. The Contractor shall collaborate and coordinate with peer specialist{s) who
provide support, empathy and education for Individuals experiencing a mental
health crisis, which may include, but is not limited to:

2.9.1. Assisting with crisis intervention, stabilization and triage.

2.9.2. Assisting the Master's level clinician with completing assessments.

2.9.3. Working in the crisis apartments.

2.9.4. Sharing personal, practical experience, knowledge of recovery
principles and first hand insight to facilitate useful outcomes for people
who are using Mobile Crisis Team services.

2.10. The Contractor shall provide up to seven (7) days of sen/Ices and supports,
following the onset of the crisis, as well as beyond, the immediate crisis
period, as appropriate.

2.11. The Contractor shall refer callers to the emergency department/emergency
room when the assessment determines the individual requires an emergency
medical assessment and treatment in addition to psychiatric sen/ices.

2.12. The Contractor shall provide outreach and education to increase community
awareness of Mobile Crisis Services and Supports, which shall include but is
not limited to:

2.12.1. Publishing local newspaper articles.

2.12.2. Attending stakeholder meetings.

2.12.3. Collaborating with peer support colleagues to support and publicize the
program.

2.12.4. Offering specialized training to hospital emergency departments. ,

The Mental Health Center oT Greater Manchester Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Mobile Crisis Services and Supports

Exhibit A

2.13. The Contractor shall prioritize a comprehensive list of community partners
that shall be contacted in order to offer education on mobile crisis supports
and services as well HIPPA requirements. The Contractor shall:

2.13.1. Create a brochure that highlights mobile crisis supports and services
available to the community partners.

2.13.2. Network with community partners to ensure linkages, and community
services are readily available when the Contractor responds to a crisis
situation. .

2.14. The Contractor will proyide two (2) Mobile Crisis apartments with no more
than two (2) beds per apartment, which will serve as an alternate to
hospitaiization and/or institutionalization to individuals utilizing mobile crisis
supports and services, within sixty (60) days of the contract approval date.
The Contractor shall ensure:

2.14.1. All crisis apartment beds are certified under administrative rule He-M-
1002.

2.14.2. Each crisis apartment has at least one (1) bathroom with a sink, toilet,
and a bathtub or shower.

2.14.3. Each crisis apartment has a specific sleeping area designated for each
individual and that common areas are not used as bedrooms,

2.14.4. Each crisis apartment has storage space for each individual's clothing
and personal possessions.

2.14.5. Each crisis apartment has accommodations for the nutritional needs of
an individual.

2.14.6. Each crisis apartment has at least one (1) telephone for incoming and
outgoing calls.

2.14.7. An indivkJual's stay at a crisis apartment is limited to seven (7) days.

2.15. The Contractor shall provide transportation for individuals from the site of the
crisis to the apartment, and to their home or other residential setting after
stabilization has occurred. The Contractor shall ensure staff members
providing transportation have:

2.15.1. A valid driver's license.

2.15.2. A state-inspected vehicle.

2.15.3. Proof that vehicle is insured.

2.16. The Contractor shall ensure that each crisis apartment is operated with
sufficient clinical support and oversight, and peer staffing, twenty-four (24)
hours per day, seven (7) days per week, as is reasonably necessary to
prevent unnecessary institiitiohalization. Staff shall include, but not be limited
to:

2.16.1. One (1) Master level Clinician/nurse clinician onsite. i ,

The Mentdl Health Center of Greater Manchester Exhibft A Contractor Initab 1^^^.
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2.16.2. One (1) Peer Specialist onsite.

2.16.3. One (1) Psychiatrist/APRN on-ca|[.

3- StafTtng

3.1. The Contractor shall ensure all potential staff provides the following
documentation:

3.1.1. A minimum of two (2) references.

3.1.2. BEAS State Registry Consent Form.

3.1.3. Central Registry Name Search Authorization.

3.1.4. Criminal Record Release Authorization Form - General.

3.2. The Contractor shall ensure, prior to an offer of employment, the
documentation list in Section 3.1 is processed through the appropriate State
departments to ensure that the employee has no history of:

3.2.1.' A felony conviction.

3.2.2. A misdemeanor conviction involving:

3.2.2.1. Physical or sexual assault.

3.2.2.2. Violence.

3.2.2.3. Exploitation.

3.2.2.4. Child pornography.

3.2.2.5. Threatening or reckless conduct.

3.2.2.6. Theft.

3.2.2.7. Driving under the influence of drugs or alcohol.

3.2.2.8. Any other conduct that represents evidence of behavior that
could endanger the well-being of a consumer.

3.3. The Contractor shall ensure results from the forms identified in Section 3.1

are kept on file and available to the Department upon request.

3.4. The Contractor shall ensure the Mobile Crisis Team and staff operating the
crisis apartment are available twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days
per week and have the following qualrficattons:

3.4.1. At a minimum, Clinicians must have:

3.4.1.1. A master's degree in psychology, psychiatric social work,
psychiatric nursing, or mental health counseling.

3.4.1.2. Training in crisis intervention services, risk management,
assessment of suicide potential and Integrated Treatment for
co-occurring disorders.

Th« Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester Exhibit A Contractor Inittats
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3.4.1.3. A minimum often (10) hours of continuing education related to
behavioral health every two (2) years.

3.4.2. At a minimum, Peer Specialists must have:

3.4.2.1. A high school diploma.

3.4.2.2. Certification as a peer specialist.

3.4.2.3. Training in crisis Intervention.

3.4.2.4. A minimum of ten (10) hours of continuing education related to
behavioral health every two (2) years.

3.4.3. At a minimum, the on-call Psychiatrist/APRN must; -

3.4.3.1. Be board certified in Psychiatry.

4. Reporting

4.1. The Contractor will provide a monthly report by the tenth (10th) of each
month, to the State Project Manager, which shall include but not be limited to
following:

4.1.1. Number of individuals wrho received services.

4.1.2. Insurance carrier of the individual who received services.
/

4.1.3. Date and time of contact.

4.1.4. Service/or services provided.to the individual.

4.1.5. Location of where services were provided.

4.1.6. Lerigth of time services were provided.

4.1.7. Whether law enforcement was involved.

474r8r-4f-serviGes-were-pFGvided-beyond-the-immediatecfisis:

4.1.9. Statistics on aversions from hospitalizations.

4.1.10. Outcome of service provided, which may include but is not limited to
hospitalization. crisis apartment assignment, home placement or
emergerrcy room admission.

4.1.11. Response time of the mobile crisis team.

4.1.12. Referral sources.

4.1.13. Number , of clients with Limited English Proficiency who needed
translation services.

4.1.14. Numberof clients who required interpretation services.

5. Compliance

5.1. The Contractor shall comply with all of the requirements of the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPPA) Privacy Rules, Public
Law 104-191.

The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester Exhibit A Contractor Initials ^
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5.2. The Contractor shall comply with ail of the requirements of the Certification
Standards for Behavioral Health Community Residences He-M 1002.

8. Performance Measures

6.1. The Contractor shall ensure 95% of calls received are acted upon within one (1)
hour of receiving the call for services in accordance with contract requirements
for response.

7. Deliverables

7.1. The Contractor shall provide a copy of all outreach and marketing tools designed
and used in Section 2.12 to the Department at least ten (10) days prior to
implementing them.

7.2. The Contractor shall provide a copy of the brochure designed in accordance with
Section 2.13 for Department approval prior to distribution and within 90 days of
the contract effective date.

7.3.The Contractor shall ensure Mobile Crisis apartments described in Section 2.14
are operational no later than sixty (60) days from the contract effective date.

The Mental HaaRh Center of Greater Mahc^ester EihiUA Contractor Initials
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. ' This contract is funded with a combination of federal funds and general funds anticipated
to be available based upon continued appropriation. Funds are conditioned upon
continued support of the program by the state and federal governments. Department
access to supporting federal funding is dependent upon the selected Contractor meeting
the requirements in accordance with the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services. Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, Medical Assistance Program.
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistarx^ (CFDA #) 93.778, Federal Award Identification
Number (FAIN) NH20144.

2. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Umitation on Form
P37, Block 1.8, for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope
of Sen/ices.

3. Payment for all services and expenses shall be on a cost reimbursement basis only for
actual expenditures.

4. Services provided by the Mobile Crisis Team will be paid by the New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services as follows:

4.1. Medicaid enrolled irxiividuals:

4.1.1. Medicaid Care Management: . If enrolled with a Managed Care
Organization (MCO), the vendor will be paid in accordance with Hs
contract with the MCO.

4.1.2. Medicaid Fee for Service: The vendor will bill Medicaid for services on the

Fee for Service (FFS) schedule.

4.2. Other Insurarice/payors:

4.2.1. The vendor will directly bill the other insurance or payors.

4:3:—Untnsured-individoals:~ —~—■

4.3.1. The vendor will directly bill the New Hampshire Department of Health and
Human Services.

5. Services not covered by Medicaid or by other insurance that are eligible for New
Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services payment shall be paid to the
Contractor within forty-five (45) days, upon receipt of the following:
5.1. The monthly "Bureau of Behavioral Health Green Sheet" Invoice (Exhibit 8-1).

which shall include:

5.1.1. Agency Name;
5.1.2. Amount of request;

5.1.3. Program Name (Mobile Crisis Response Team or Crisis Apartments);

5.1.4. Time Period for which reimbursement is requested;

5.1.5. Date of Request; and

Exhibit B Cont/actor Uiiliats
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.5.1.6. Costs for which reimbursement is requested must be itemized (e.g.
salaries, travel, etc.).

5.2. All documents providing evidence of expenditure which must be Itemized to
reflect the budget line Item number indicated In accordance with the Contract
Budget (Exhibit B-3).

5.2.1. Payments shall not exceed those indicated in the Contract Budget line
items identified In Exhibit B-3.

5.3. The Mobile Crisis Teams Compliance Report (Exhibit B-2); and

5.4. All payments must be approved by the DHHS Administrator of Community
Mental Health Services or designee prior to payment.

6. The Contractor is required to submit a Mobile Crisis Team Monthly Compliance Report
(Exhibit B-2) to accompany the monthly invoices. New Hampshire Department of Health
and Human Services reserves the right to withhold and/or reduce payments if the
Contractor is not in compliance as indicated by the Report.

7. . Invoices shall be submitted electronically to:

Administrator of Community Mental Health Services
NH Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Behavioral Health

105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

8. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
identified in Exhibits A and B.

9. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than sixty (60) days after the
Contract ends. Failure to submit the invoice, and accompanying documentation could
result in nonpayment. ■

10. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this Contract may be withheld, in whole or In part, in the event of noncompliance
with any State or Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if
the said services have not been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions
of this Agreement.

11. When the contract price limitation is reached, the program shall continue to operate at
full capacity at no charge to the State of New Hampshire for the duration of the contract
period.

12. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the P-37, an amendment limited to the adjustment of
amounts between budget line Items and/or State Fiscal Years, related items, and
amendment of related budget exhibits, can be made by written agreement of both
parties and does not require additional approval by Governor and Executive Council.

Exhibit B Contractor Initials.
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i^OPY^ONl^REfN
Exhibit B-i 'Green Sheet"

■M-

NEW HAMPSHIRE BUREAU OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Shaded aireas f^BBHlko only.

APPROVAL REQUEST FOR EXHISrr B CONTRACT FUNDS

1. Agency name:
2. Date of request
3. Amount of request J
4. Service development for which funds are requested (use additional sheets if necessary);j_

PROGRAfIA COORD;' EXHIBIT B
ITEM

EXHIBIT B
TYPE*

TOTAL
AMOUNT

REQUESTED

PAYMENT SCHEDULE

(I.e., lump sum, monthly, etc.)

f
■p': ■? .

• •a

n

.0^':

-M.rm
-'i

?~SlFi
-i- -^7?

* Consumers, Childrens. Elders, Housing, PSA etc.

5. Authorized CMHC/PSA signature:

BBH PROGRAM MANAGER:

□

Signature:-- Date:ii

J  ll- •"'I" ■■■ i"

BBH PAYMENT APPROVAL:
□  Approv^- .-■11$
□ Denied.,;^.

Signature: ■-'i- Date;' H.

■'■'i.

Page1 of 1

Contractor Initials. -i

Date



ExhibH B-2

MOBILE CRISIS TEAMS

COMPLIANCE REPORT

Agency Name: FV: Month:

The Contractor shall ensure that the Mobile Crisis Team is available twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per
week.

Meets .compliance □ Does not meet compliance □
Corrective Action Plan:

The Mobile Crisis Team is composed of clinicians trained to provide behavioral health emergency services and crisis
intervention services, and also includes at least one (1) peer specialist and one (l)on-call psychiatrist/APRN.

Meets compliance D Does not meet compliance D -
Corrective Action Plan:

The Mobile Crisis Team is able to respond to individuals twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week onsite
in their homes and in other natural environments and community settings where crises arise, including in crisis
apartments.

Meets compliance □ Does not meet compliance □
Corrective Action Plan:

The Mobile Crisis Team is able to offer services and supports via telephone and, whenever necesMry, consistent with
legitimate safety concerns, meet face-lo-face to de-cscalate crises without removing the individuals from their homes
and/or community programs.

Meets compliance □ Does not meet compliance □
Corrective Action Plan:

The Mobile Crisis Team is able to provide services and supports until the crisis subsides, up to seven (7) days following
the onset of the crisis.

Meets compliance □ Does not meet compliance O
Corrective Action Flan:

The Mobile Crisis Team is able to work with law enforcement personnel to respond to individuals in mental health crisis
who come into contact with law enforcement

. . . Meets compliance □ Does not meet compliance □
Corrective Action Plan:

1

Submit Ekclronlcally with *'Creeo Sheet** Invoice Monthly j
III,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obtigations; The Contractor covenants and agrees that ail funds received by the Contractor
under the Contrad shall be used o'niy as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
Individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follcws:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor Is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such ellgibility determination shall be made In accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by

-■ ^e Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder. which file shall Include all
information necessary to support an eiigibinty determination and such other Information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that ail applicants for services hereunder. as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right fo a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fotr
hearing in accordance wIth'Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to Influence the performance of the Scope, of Work detailed In Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Pavments: Notwithstanding anything to the conb-ary contained in the Cnntrart nr in anv_
otoer document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of tt^e Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to Ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereurider, in which event new rates shall be established;'
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement In

excess of costs;

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor Is
permitted to determine the eligibility of Individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION, AUDfT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:
8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of tfte Contract, and all
Income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, iriventories. valuatior^ of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eiigibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all Invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit Contractor.shal! submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared In accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audite of States/Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the

Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
° designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor tl^t the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such Information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to die administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disctosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of tfie Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on virritten consent of the recipienL his
attorney or guardian.

jA
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive tiie teimination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the fbliovknng
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interimjinancial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allow^le expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shad t)e submitted on the form
deslgr^ted by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the erxj of the term
of this Contract The Final Report shall be In a form satisfactoty to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives st^ed in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department

12. Comptellon of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the.
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of Ihe parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or ■
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if. upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to r^over such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement

13.1. The.preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire. Departrrierit of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part' •
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution-or-use7-The-DHHS^il-f€tain-copyrighVownershlp-fo^any-and-aU-originahnaterials-
produced, including, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Cornpltance with Laws .and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
slate, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the senrices at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit In connection with the foregolng requirennents, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

18. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR), If it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or

ExMbil C - Special Provisions
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
virlth fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, and medical and educational Institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cenpdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified t)y Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control ar^ Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
. following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

\

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and RequirementTo Inform Employees of
'  Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) this contract and employees v/orking on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees In writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), In all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and acoountablilty for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to.pertorm the delegated
function(s). This Is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.
When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subconlractorls ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the function .
19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting

responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials

06(27n4 Page 4 of 5 Da im



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and wt^en the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discreb'on, revievy and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor Identifres deficiencies or areas for improvement are identlfjed. the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting prirtciples established In accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES; Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

. PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or fonrts
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW; Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to In the Contract the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a corhpilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire

, Administrative Procedures AcL NH RSA Ch 541-A. for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated tt^ereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C-SpedalPr<WisiOfls Contractor Initials
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

ftotwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments. In whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or.otliervirlse
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
' Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or In part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder In excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from anyother source or account into the
Account(s) identified In block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the. event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract. Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State,- 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its

;  option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within. 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the Slate a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement. Including but not limited to, identifying the' present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
Iriformation to support the Transition Ran Including, but not limited.to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement. Including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shad establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in Its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. The Division reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2) additional years, subject to
the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the
Governor and Executive Council.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 19M (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES r CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations Implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L 100-690. Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by Inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-ftee workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sut>-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification.to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certiricates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certiffcalion. The certificate set out below is a
mateiial representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee cerHfies that it will or virill continue to provide a drug-free workplace by;
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled sulDStance is prohibited in the grantee's

prohibition:
1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about

1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; ^
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be Imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee In the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee wiil
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal a9®'^cy

ExhJbH D - Certificarton regarding Drug Free Conlractor Initials
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shafi Include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an.empioyee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Reh^iiitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved tor such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency:

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-fi'ee workplace through
implementadon of paragraphs 1.1,1.2,1.3,1.4,1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check Q If there are workplaces on file that are not Identified here.

Contractor Name: The Mental Health Center of Greater

Manchester

Date NameiwIrnamBder
Titler-Presldent/Chlef Executive Officer
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CERTIFiCATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Corttraclor identified |n Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to compiy with the provisions of
Section 319 of PulMicLaw 10V121, Government wide Guidance for New Resthctions on Lobbying, and.
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
^Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX \
•Medrcaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropnated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for Influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Memt>er of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or emptoyee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to

_ReportLobbyingr4n.accordaoce-with-itsJnstnjctionSr^ttached^nd4deotified-a^tandard-Exhibit-E»L)-

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be Included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including sutx;ontracts. sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a matenal representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification Is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certificallon shall be subject, to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor NameThc Mental Health Center of Greater

Manchester

fjluliif jm:
to Namp-Wiillani RidDate Name^iiViam klder

Tltle:TT®8f-<J®nt/Chief Executive Officer
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inabili^ of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessaiity result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered In connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
prirnary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
avaHable to the Federal Government, .DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant teams
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction.' "debarred," "suspended," 'ineligible.' "lower tier covered
transaction,' "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," 'principal.' "proposal," and
'voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) th^t, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter Into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation In this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant In a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the nriethod and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

AExhibil F - Certirication Regarding Debariment. Suspension Contractor Intltals
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, Jf a partidpant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters Into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed fordebarment, declared Ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently Indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) wKh commission of any of Ihe offenses enumerated In paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification: and

11.4. have not wilhin a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable lo certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined iri'45CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and Its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction by any federal department or agency.
1 wherp prrwpprtiuo Inwpr Hof partidpant is nnahte tf> rertify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that It will
iriclude this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Drtarment, Suspension. Irwligibllity, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions." without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered ti'ansactions.

Conlractor Name: The Mental Health Center of Greater
Manchester

c5l(<y //U
Date Nan^eWilllam Rider

Titleipresident/Chief Executive Officer
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPUANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees t>y signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certirication:

Contractor vnit comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime C<^trol and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3769d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or t>eneflts, oh the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

• Vie Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services.or
t)enefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

• the Civil'Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin In any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistanee from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employmeni and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

^.the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination arwl ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and (oca!
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education AmerxJments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683,1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex In federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohibits discrimination on the
t>asts of age in programs or activities receiving Federal ftnancial assistance. It does not Include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Polldes
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for parinerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted January 2.2013) the Pflot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the
agency awards the grant False certificdtion or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
^.suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G
Contractor Initlab.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
ExhitHt G

In the event a Federal.or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the apf^icat>le contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsrnan.

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to wecute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name^he Mental Health Center of Greater

Manchester

Datp- Name: William RiiDate' Name:William Rider
Title: President/Chief Executive Officer

Exhibit G
Contractor Initiais.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Rubric Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted In any portion of any Indoor facilrty owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or Ebrary services to children under the age of 18. If the services are funded by Federal prograrns either
directly or through Stale or (oca! govemments. by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
taw does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, ̂cilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicald funds, and portions of ̂littles used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result In the Imposition "of a dvil monetary penalty of up to .
$1000 per day and/or the Imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified In Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable effbrts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:The Mencal Health Center of Greater
Manchester

5lull0' _____
Date Nameiwilllam Rider

Title: President/Chief Executive Officer

Ejchibit H - Certirication Regarding Cor^traOor IniUab
Environtnenta! Tobacco Smoke

cuOMHsnioria Page ̂ of 1 5. lUp



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEWENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health. Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
wKh the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable hlealth Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate' shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health Information under this Agreement and 'Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 1.64.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set"
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data Aagreoation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

-e. "HITEGH-AGt-means-the-Health-lnformatioFi-Technology-for-EconomiG-and-Clinical-Health-
Act, TitieXill. Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "indlviduar in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

i- "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information' shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103. limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. \ j

3/2014 Exhibai Cantractor Initiate (/1AIL/
Health Insurance Portability Act
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

^  Exhibit t

I. "Required bv Law* shall have the same meaning as the term 'required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Securitv Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Infonnation at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

o. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that ts accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not othervyise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act

i  '

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Infonnation.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (I)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidenti^ity of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first rwUfylng
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate r^ief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business i

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor InWals [fj\*
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer Immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health Infomnation not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured ,
protected health Information and/or any security incident that may have an Impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when It becomes
aware of any .of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health Information Involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identlficatlon;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including '
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I), The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's Intend^ business associates, who will be receiving PHj

3/2014 Exhibill Cofttractorlmlials.
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Exhibit I

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance vyith the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amerximent and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its.

. olHigations under 45 CFR Section 164.528.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
Individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accountirig of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity,such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528. j

k. In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of'the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or receive by the Business Associate in connection with the.
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If retum or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the retum or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business j /

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor bvibala
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Exhibit I

Associate majntains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or llmitation(s) in Its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provid^ to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate ureter this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(8) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as Is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy.and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HiPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

3/20U Exhibit I Contractor Initials
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Seoreaation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held Invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other tenns or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Sun/ival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement

IN WITNESS yVHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit i.

The State

Signatured Authorized Representative

S". <><.
Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester

Name of the Contractor

Signature of Authorized Representative

WtlUnm Rider

Name of Authorized Representative

President/Chief Executive Officer

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

3/2014 ExhibR]
Health Insurance Portatxlity Ad
Business Assodate Agreement

Page 6 of 6

Contractor Initials

Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT IFFATA) COMPLiANCE

The Fede'r^ Funding Accounbbility and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1,2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sut)-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
Initial award Is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the dale of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following Information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts ICFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information Is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the rronth, plus 30 days, In which
the award or award amendment Is made. .. • *
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Ad. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions ■
execute the following Certification: u iLtt_i
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed Information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act

Contractor Name: The Mental Health Center of Greater
Manchester

Date Name:WllIiam Rider
TitJe:President/Chief Executive Officer

cu®KHsnto;i3 Pa9o1of2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORMA V

As the Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of Ihe General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for vour entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue In U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements: and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above Is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above Is YES, please answer the following:

3. • Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of'1934 (16 U.S.C.78m(a). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Intemal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above Is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO. please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers In your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:<rouefyl(A~urhl30i 1 Amount:

NameV^liiQCtx Q\Aer. C.^.O Amount: ^ ftcSO

Name: Pcul M ickoaci . CPO Amount: 13-Q, 5^^

Name: PQ-H"tCia CcLr^y, CQO AmounL \00,
Name; Ptckarj V»P. Amount: - ^*^5"

eiXiMHstia^n
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